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Kevin M. Guskiewicz
Chancellor

The University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill

December 9, 2020

As chancellor of the nation’s first public university, it is my privilege to share our
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2020.

This year has tested our campus community in unprecedented ways. But | remain
optimistic about our continued ability to adapt and serve as the leading global
public research university.

This message highlights a few of the many accomplishments behind the financial
numbers and operating information. From research, to teaching, to affordability,
we continue to excel as an institution despite the challenging headwinds and
heavy burdens on our community.

This year, the UNC-Chapel Hill Board of Trustees (BOT) voted to approve our new
strategic plan, Carolina Next: Innovations for Public Good. Carolina Next is our
guide for University strategic investment and decision-making, built around eight
strategic initiatives that will shape our priorities for the next five years.

The first of these strategic initiatives is Build our Community Together. In January
2020, we established the History, Race and a Way Forward Commission to bring
together students, faculty, staff and community leaders to study and learn from
our University's complex history. We created a new Diversity Council to introduce
a powerful collective voice that will directly advise the provost and myself on best
practices for structural change and for ensuring all voices are heard.

This spring, over the span of two weeks, our faculty, students and staff pivoted
from in-person to online learning as a result of COVID-19. Their tremendous effort
upheld our academic excellence and enabled the Carolina experience to adapt
and continue for approximately 30,000 students.

Our research funding continues its remarkable progress. Our faculty brought
in over $1 billion in research funding during this fiscal year, including millions
in COVID-19 funding. UNC-Chapel Hill was ranked early in the pandemic by
Microsoft Academic's rating system as the highest ranked university in the
U.S. for coronavirus research. We rank fourth in research citations and sixth
in publications. From our years of work to enable remdesivir to emerge as an
early COVID-19 treatment, to extensive work on major vaccine clinical trials,
to $80 million in grant funding to address testing disparities in underserved
communities — our research enterprise responded quickly and decisively to
tackle this grave threat to our country and state.

Carolina's commitment to and focus on affordability remains strong. It's difficult
to imagine another time in our history when the strain on our students was more



intense than right now. That strain underscores the importance
of our continued ranking from Kiplinger as the best value among
all public institutions, the 18th year in a row we've earned their
best in-state value award. We have prioritized and accelerated
the Carolina Edge, our bold commitment to raise $1 billion in
scholarships to support students at every level.

These steps aren't without cost and the impact on our financial
situation will be significant. However, we are confident in our
ability to continue providing relief for our students as we move
through this pandemic.

That's because of the strong support of our alumni and donors. FY
2020 remained an impressive year for fundraising with $565 million
in new cash and commitments, representing our third best year
ever at Carolina. We also set a new record in FY 2020 - bringing
in more than $424 million in cash. That is a 2% increase over the
prior year, also a record-setter. By passing the $3 billion mark, we
are on track to meeting our goal of $4.25 billion for the ambitious
Campaign for Carolina, culminating Dec. 31, 2022.

Generous support has allowed us to grow our uniquely Carolina
programs that inspire our students to innovate, create and think
critically about the world they live in. Those programs include
the Global Guarantee, Institute for Convergent Science, Southern
Futures, UNC Program for Public Discourse and a new school in
Data Science.

Against this backdrop, Carolina enrolled the largest ever class of
first-year students, a strategic shift that will continue for at least

the next four years as we enroll ever larger first year cohorts.

Growth can be difficult, particularly given the expansive Carolina
experience that defines our students’ undergraduate education. Yet
it's essential that we increase our footprint. The state we serve is
growing, and Carolina must grow with it.

Public universities are made for moments like this. Decades of
investment by the people of North Carolina have built an institution
capable of delivering extraordinary results to the state and the
world. The service and research work we do will be responsible
for significantly mitigating the impact of this global pandemic on
North Carolinians, and the herculean efforts of our faculty and staff

have ensured thousands of students will stay on track with their
undergraduate and graduate work.

These highlighted accomplishments would not be possible
without the support we receive from the Board of Trustees, UNC
System leadership, alumni and elected officials in our state. Their
continued belief in our mission allows us to serve the citizens of
North Carolina, the United States and the world through superior
teaching, research and public service.

FY 2020 was marked by boldness, adaptation and grit. As
chancellor, I'm proud of how this community persevered. Moving
forward, our focus as an institution must be on lessening the
burden of this period on those who make up the Carolina
community. The amount of work needed to keep an institution
world-class is enormous in the best of times; it's even greater in
the midst of this crisis.

The next year will be defined by our ability to create sustainability
as we move out of a sprint and into a marathon. I'm confident we
will do so and continue to serve a transformational role for our
state. | remain committed to strengthening our partnership with
the citizens of North Carolina to reassure them that we are the
University FOR North Carolina.
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Nate Knuffman

Interim Vice Chancellor for
Finance and Operations

The University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill

December 9, 2020

To Chancellor Guskiewicz, Members of the Board of Trustees and Friends of the
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) includes the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2020, as well as other useful information
that helps ensure the University's accountability to the public. Responsibility
for the accuracy of the information and for the completeness and fairness of
its presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the University's manage-
ment. We believe the information is accurate in all material respects and fairly
presents the University's financial position, revenues, expenses and other
changes in net position.

We believe our system of internal controls is sound and sufficient to disclose
material deficiencies in controls to the auditors and the audit committee and
to provide management with reasonable, although not absolute, assurance
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.
Because the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits to be derived, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements are free of any material misstatements. The University is a
participant in the Business Compliance Program. This program is a collaborative
project sponsored by the University of North Carolina System Office that seeks
to strengthen internal controls in the finance areas to ensure financial integrity
and accountability and meet the requirements of Enhancing Accountability in
Government through Leadership and Education (EAGLE). EAGLE is the state's
internal control program that was established by the Office of the State Controller
to meet the requirements of House Bill 1551, Chapter 143D “State Governmental
Accountability and Internal Control Act.”

State law, federal guidelines and certain bond covenants require that the
University's accounting and financial records be audited by the Office of the
State Auditor each year. The University's internal auditors also perform fiscal,
compliance and performance audits. The reports resulting from these and
external audit reports are provided to the Finance, Infrastructure and Audit
Committee of the Board of Trustees as well as University management.

The CAFR includes Management's Discussion and Analysis and all disclosures
necessary for the reader to gain a broad understanding of the University's
financial position and results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.



Profile of the University

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill was anticipated
by the first state constitution drawn up in 1776 directing the
establishment of “one or more universities” in which “all useful
learning should be duly encouraged and promoted.” It was not
until 1789, the year when George Washington became president of
the new nation after the American Revolution, that the University
was chartered by the North Carolina General Assembly. On Oct. 12,
1793, the cornerstone was laid for the first campus building.

Now in its third century, UNC-Chapel Hill belongs to the select
group of American and Canadian campuses forming the Associa-
tion of American Universities. The University's academic offerings
span more than 100 fields, including bachelor's, master's and
doctoral degrees as well as professional degrees in dentistry,
medicine, pharmacy and law. Five health schools, which, with
UNC Health, comprise one of the nation's most complete academic
medical centers, are integrated with liberal arts, basic sciences and
high-tech academic programs.

The accompanying financial statements present all funds belonging
to the University and its component units. While the multicampus
University of North Carolina System's Board of Governors has
ultimate responsibility, the chancellor, the University's Board
of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund
have both delegated and statutory responsibilities for financial
accountability of the University's funds. The University prepares
its financial statements and related disclosures in accordance
with standards set by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) and implements new GASB statements as they
are required.

The financial reporting entity for the financial statements is
comprised of the University and 12 component units. Nine of
these, although legally separate, are reported as if they were part
of the University. These include The University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, Inc. (Chapel Hill
Investment Fund); UNC Investment Fund, LLC (UNC Investment
Fund); UNC Intermediate Pool, LLC (UNC Intermediate Pool); UNC
Management Company, Inc. (Management Company); The Univer-
sity of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation, Inc., (UNC-Chapel
Hill Foundation); The Kenan-Flagler Business School Foundation
(Business School Foundation); WUNC Public Radio, LLC (WUNC);
Carolina Research Ventures, LLC (Research Ventures) and HVPV
Holdings, LLC (HVPV).

Separate financial statements for three other component units are
reported based on GASB Statement No. 39. UNC Health Founda-
tion, Inc., (UNC Health Foundation), The Educational Foundation
Scholarship Endowment Trust (Educational Foundation Trust), and

the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Arts & Sciences
Foundation, Inc. (Arts & Sciences Foundation) are legally separate,
nonprofit, tax-exempt organizations and are reported as discretely
presented component units based on the nature and significance
of their relationship to the University.

The accounting and financial records of the Chapel Hill Investment
Fund, UNC Investment Fund, UNC Intermediate Pool, Manage-
ment Company, UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation, Business School
Foundation, WUNC Public Radio, Research Ventures, HVPV, Arts &
Sciences Foundation, Medical Foundation, Educational Foundation
Trust and the Athletic Department are each audited by a public
accounting firm. All audit reports are available for public inspection.
Other related foundations and similar nonprofit corporations for
which the University is not financially accountable are not part of
the accompanying financial statements.

The University is responsible for controlling its budget and using
the funds to fulfill its educational, research and public service
missions. It is also responsible for planning, developing and
controlling budgets and expenditures within authorized alloca-
tions in accordance with University, state and federal policies
and procedures.

Economic Condition

National and state economic conditions took a substantial turn
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. Many economic and
demographic indicators were at their peak in the third and fourth
quarters of calendar year 2019. That all ended in early 2020 with the
arrival of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and the shutdown
of the economy that resulted from measures taken to slow the
spread of the disease.

A national emergency was declared on March 13 and governors
across the U.S. moved swiftly to restrict economic activity. The
reaction was rapid and deep. North Carolina and every other
state saw declines in total economic output (gross domestic
product [GDP]) in the first quarter of calendar year 2020 with
the shutdown only occurring in the last few weeks of the quarter.
While the data for the second quarter (and revisions back to 2015)
haven't been released by the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA)
of the U.S. Department of Commerce at the time of print, we can
infer record declines for every state based on the national data
that were released on Aug. 27.

On June 8, 2020, the Business Cycle Dating Committee of the
National Bureau of Economic Research (NBER) announced that
the longest expansion in U.S. business cycle history ended in
February 2020 after 128 months.



Efforts to restart the economy in North Carolina and the U.S. saw
mixed results, with increases in new COVID-19 infections occurring
as restrictions were lifted. Many of the jobs lost in March and
April 2020 had begun to return by May 2020. According to the
U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, the unemployment rate in North
Carolina was 6.5% in August 2020, a 2% drop from July 2020. This
compares with a rate of 3.8% in August 2019. The unemployment
rate in North Carolina peaked in April 2020 at 12.9%. The Durham-
Chapel Hill Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) has faired slightly
better than the overall state with a preliminary 6.0% unemployment
rate in August 2020 and a peak of 10.6% in May 2020.

The North Carolina legislature saved significant revenues over
the past decade in a “rainy day” fund. That fund, modest base
spending levels, and transfers from the federal government under
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act
prevented significant cuts in the state budget for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020.

Cost-cutting measures, controls on spending, delay of targeted
capital projects and hiring limitations were implemented to
offset losses in revenues at the University. The primary areas of
revenue loss resulted from a campus shutdown and pivot to online
instruction in March 2020. The areas most impacted were housing,
dining, athletics and parking. Core University functions, including
instruction and research, did not see substantial financial impacts
from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Financial policies directing the maintenance of adequate reserves
sustained the University during the pandemic. These reserves are
not unlimited and could run out as the pandemic continues to
require suspension of revenue generating services. Plans are
being formulated and integrated into future budgets to replenish
reserves and maintain liquidity. Targeted cuts may be considered
in fiscal year 2021.

Research activities, accounting for approximately one-third of
University revenue, continued growth in the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020, and are expected to grow in FY 2021 as University
research continues to play a prominent role in developing vaccines
and medication to treat COVID-19.

It is unknown how the continued COVID-19 pandemic will impact
economic activity in FY 2021. There is an expectation that the
economy will not return to its pre-COVID-19 levels for some
time. According to the “Blue Chip Economic Indicator” report
from August 2020, the 2020 GDP consensus is -5.2%, while the
consensus forecast for calendar year 2021 is 3.8% growth over
2020.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States
and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the University for its CAFR for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This was the 25th consecutive
year that the University has been honored with this prestigious
award. To receive a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of
Achievement is valid for one year. We believe our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

Preparation of this CAFR in a timely manner would not have
been possible without the coordinated efforts of the University
community, with special assistance from the Chancellor's Office,
the Office of the Executive Vice Chancellor and Provost, UNC
Treasury Services, UNC Creative, the Finance and Operations
Service Center of Excellence, the Office of Sponsored Research,
Student Affairs, Information Technology Services, University
Development, University Communications, Institutional Research
and Assessment, the Office of Scholarships and Student Aid,
the Department of Athletics, and Dr. James F. Smith, Adjunct
Professor of Business Administration in the Kenan-Flagler
Business School. In addition, the Office of the State Auditor
provided invaluable assistance.







Progress and

Major Initiatives

Carolina by the Numbers

1

The number of first-year applicants to Carolina remains strong.
For fall 2020, the University received 44,379 applications, a 1%
decline from last year's record-breaking 44,784 applications.

2

Carolina ranked fifth among the country’s public universities
for the 19th year, according to the U.S. News & World Report's
2020 “Best Colleges” rankings. It ranked No. 1 as best value
for public universities and this year landed among the top ten
universities for best value nationwide.

3

In July 2019, Kiplinger's rated UNC-Chapel Hill as the best
in-state value for the 18th straight time (as many times as
it has ranked public colleges), as well as best out-of-state
value. With an 84% graduation rate (among the highest of all
colleges on their list) and generous need-based aid awards,
UNC-Chapel Hill remains dedicated to student success.

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

4

Several Carolina graduate degree programs were highly
ranked in the U.S. News & World Report’s 2020 “Best Graduate
Schools” report. The Eshelman School of Pharmacy ranked
No. 1 for the second year in a row, the School of Medicine
ranked first for its primary care program for the third year in a
row and the School of Nursing ranked first for overall public
graduate school programs. In addition, the School of Nursing
tied for third in its master’s degree category and seventh for
its Doctor of Nursing Practice. The School of Government
moved up two places to 19th in the country and the School of
Education rose three places to tie for 24th overall. The School
of Law jumped seven places and is now tied at 27th overall.

5

In April 2020, the Microsoft Academic rating system
ranked UNC-Chapel Hill as the highest ranked university
in the world for coronavirus research. It ranked eighth
among U.S. institutions in saliency, surpassed only by the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (No. 2) and
the National Institutes of Health (No. 5). It placed fourth
in the number of citations for its research and sixth for its
number of publications.



Introduction

The 2019-2020 fiscal year for the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill proved to
be one of the most challenging in its history. Shortly after the University appointed its
12th chancellor, Kevin M. Guskiewicz, to office, the course of world events changed
with the arrival of COVID-19. Within weeks students transitioned to remote learning
and much of the University’s faculty and staff began working from home. Carolina’s
strong history of research initiatives and investment in innovation put it ahead of the
curve: early research on COVID-19 was instrumental in developing treatment options
for the disease. In addition, Carolina's legacy of public service continued to shine in
many different areas as it assisted the state and nation in addressing the pandemic.
Highlights of the University’s various responses to COVID-19 include:

In 2014, biopharmaceutical company Gilead Sciences Inc. partnered with
the Gillings School of Global Public Health to develop the drug remdesivir. In
March 2020, the nation’s coronavirus task force announced positive clinical
trial results on the intravenous drug, which proved to diminish recovery time
for COVID-19 patients.

The Gillings School was also part of an interinstitutional team involved in the
testing of EIDD-2801, an oral medication that is seen as a potential inhibitor to
future outbreaks of coronavirus types of infection.

The Structural Genomics Consortium (SGC), UNC-Chapel Hill and the
Eshelman Institute for Innovation launched the Rapidly Emerging Antiviral Drug
Development Initiative (READDI), a global organization aimed at discovering
and developing drugs to put ‘on the shelf’ for clinical trial testing in anticipation
of future viral pandemics.

UNC-Chapel Hill is one of 15 institutions currently involved in the National
COVID Cohort Collaborative whose mission is to securely gather data and
analyze health records to accelerate COVID-19 treatment plans.

The School of Government provided two online seminars on COVID-19 to
local and state government officials, giving interpretations of state and federal
laws, advising on government response best practices, and reviewing Federal
Emergency Management Agency requirements,

To address a predicted upcoming nursing shortage in the state, the School of
Nursing waived fees for an online accelerated version of their Registered Nurse
Refresher theory course in an effort to get professionals who have lost their
licensure back in the field or help RNs update their knowledge.

The School of Education published a webpage to provide at-home learning tips
and advice from the school’s faculty experts. The site included ways for students
to stay engaged in academics while they are away from the classroom.

Carolina Dentistry, part of the Adams School of Dentistry, launched an online
teledentistry service via a virtual helpline to help patients and oral health care
providers throughout the state find appropriate treatment or resources during
the COVID-19 outbreak.




Kevin
Guskiewicz
Named 12th
Chancellor of
UNC-Chapel Hill

In December 2019, University of North
Carolina System Interim President Bill
Roper announced Kevin M. Guskiewicz
as the 12th chancellor and 30th chief
executive officer of the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill. Guskiewicz, who
had served as interim chancellor since
February 2019, was formerly the dean of
the University’s College of Arts & Sciences
where he made interdisciplinary teaching
and research a cornerstone during his
tenure. Since taking the helm, Guskiewicz
has been instrumental in shaping
Carolina's new strategic plan, Carolina
Next: Innovations for Public Good, which
outlines a roadmap for the University's
priorities moving forward.

Walter Hussman Jr,, chairman of WEHCO Media, Inc. and a 1968 graduate of
Carolina's School of Journalism, together with his family, donated $25 million in
endowed funds to the newly named Hussman School of Journalism and Media in
September 2019. The donation was the largest single gift in the school's history,
and will be used to invest in the future of journalism.

The Carolina Black Caucus, a diverse community of UNC-Chapel Hill employees
who work to advocate for, engage and empower Black faculty and staff, was
awarded the 2020 Inspiring Affinity Group award by INSIGHT Into Diversity
magazine, the oldest and largest diversity and inclusion publication and job
board in higher education. The caucus has served its constituency for more than
four decades to ensure that the Black workforce and other underrepresented
communities at Carolina have an environment in which they can thrive. Often
called “the conscience of the University," the Caucus was lauded for creating
an employee resource that offers mentoring, collaboration, social networking
opportunities and more.



The American Physical Society awarded Carolina's
physics and astronomy department a prestigious award
for Improving Undergraduate Education. The award, which
goes to no more than three of the 761 physics departments
in the United States each year, recognizes those who use
best practices for teaching physics and achieving excel-
lence in the education of undergraduates. UNC-Chapel Hill
won the award for its redesigned syllabus and structure of
learning: the model enables students to have the benefit
of highly individualized attention and advising from faculty,
early exposure to cutting-edge research and exceptional
social networking.

Transformational
Legacy of Love for

v

Tar Heel Football

As part of For All Kind: the Campaign for Carolina, The
Eddie and Jo Allison Family Foundation announced a trans-
formational commitment to Carolina Football to support
staffing needs, fund facility improvements and help build
an endowment to cover future operating costs. The gift also
honors Eddie and Jo Allison's son, Chris Smith, by naming
the field at Kenan Memorial Stadium the Chris Smith Field.
In addition to giving the largest gift the Carolina Football
program has ever received, the Smith family's legacy also
includes generous support of the School of Medicine,
Kenan-Flagler Business School, the College of Arts &
Sciences and the University Libraries.




The Gillings School of Global Public Health took center stage in the
early part of 2020 as the nation’s coronavirus task force recently
announced that remdesivir — which the school performed early
tests on — was effective at treating coronavirus and became a
standard of care for patients fighting COVID-19. The testing was
led by Ralph Baric, the William R. Kenan Jr. Distinguished Professor
of Epidemiology, (pictured, right) who has studied coronaviruses
for more than 30 years and pioneered rapid-response approaches
to the study of emerging viruses and the development of thera-
peutics. State and federal funding soon followed and so did
the school's growing response. The school was instrumental in
framing a wealth of important discussions, including: pandemic
preparation, contact tracing and the ethical considerations of
contact tracing, virus transmission, development of a vaccine,
pitfalls in the early testing, safety precautions, protection for rural
farmworkers, tracking the spread, informing communities, working
with vulnerable communities, as well as emergency response and
water surveillance.

School of Medicine
Strengthens and Serves
During Pandemic

After the School of Medicine's National Institutes of Health (NIH) funding jumped more than $23 million in federal fiscal year 2019 and it
received the top ranking for its primary care program for the third year in a row in early 2020, the school rallied against the COVID-19 crisis.
Among the many research efforts and initiatives to fight the pandemic, a few are noted here. UNC Health began testing for COVID-19 at
the UNC Medical Center in mid-March and Food Lion donated $500,000 to UNC Health for COVID-19 research. Dirk Dittmer looked into
next generation genetic sequencing for a deeper understanding of the disease, and teammates Aravinda de Silva and Prem Lakshmanane
developed a COVID-19 test that pinpoints human antibodies specific to a particular part of the SARS-CoV-2 spike protein. Medical students
teamed with the BeAM makerspaces to make 40,000 face shields for health care workers on the frontlines of the pandemic, and Ross Boyce
formed a Healthcare Worker Exposure Response & Outcomes (HERO) Registry, an online community to facilitate rapid-cycle research,
including an ongoing randomized clinical trial.

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill




North Carolina Central University and
UNC-Chapel Hill Partner to Revive Veterans Clinic

The law schools of North Carolina Central University (NCCU) and UNC-Chapel Hill revived NCCU's Veterans Clinic to
meet the ongoing needs of current and former service members in the state of North Carolina. The UNC School of Law
transferred more than $784,000 to NCCU's Veterans Clinic, the remainder of a previous appropriation to Carolina from the
North Carolina General Assembly. Both NCCU's Veterans Clinic and Carolina’s Military and Veterans Law Clinic assist active
military personnel and veterans with legal advice and sometimes representation from law students who are training. The
funds will help the clinics increase their training so they might better navigate the system when handling benefit claims in
various stages of appeals.
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Lawrence "Bubba"
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Chapel Hill, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill (University), a constituent institution of the multi-campus University of North
Carolina System, which is a component unit of the State of North Carolina, and its discretely
presented component units, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the following:

e The financial statements of the UNC Investment Fund, LLC, which represent
54.21 percent and 2.18 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
University.

e The financial statements of the UNC Intermediate Pool, LLC, which represent
4.08 percent and 0.16 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
University.

¢ The financial statements of the UNC Management Company, Inc., which represent
0.12 percent and 0.60 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
University.

27



28

e The financial statements of The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Foundation, Inc., which represent 1.45 percent and 1.01 percent, respectively, of the
assets and revenues of the University.

¢ The financial statements of The Kenan-Flagler Business School Foundation, which
represent 0.61 percent and 0.95 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the University.

e The financial statements of the UNC Health Foundation, Inc., The Educational
Foundation Scholarship Endowment Trust, or The University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill Arts and Sciences Foundation, Inc., the University’s discretely presented
component units.

The financial statements listed above were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those
entities, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the University’s blended and
discretely presented component units were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the University’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of The
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, and its discretely presented component units, as of
June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters — Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information, as
listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such



information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

The introductory and statistical sections are presented for the purposes of additional analysis
and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. This information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The introductory
and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 9, 2020 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

oo A vad

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor

Raleigh, North Carolina

December 9, 2020
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Management's Discussion
and Analysis

Management's Discussion and Analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the University of North Carolina at
Chapel Hill (the University) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, with comparative information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
Management has prepared the discussion and analysis to be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying notes
to the financial statements.

The University is a constituent institution of the 17-campus University of North Carolina System (UNC System), a component unit of the
State of North Carolina, and an integral part of the State of North Carolina's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The University
is a global higher education leader known for innovative teaching, research and public service. Now in its third century, the University, at
the time of this publication, offers 74 bachelor’s, 104 master's, 65 doctorate and seven professional degree programs through 14 schools
and the College of Arts & Sciences. A total of 29,877 undergraduate, graduate and professional students learn from a faculty of 4,036.

The financial reporting entity for the financial statements is comprised of the University and its component units. Certain component units
are reported as if they were part of the University, and others are reported as discretely presented component units based on the nature
and significance of their relationship to the University. Note 1A in the notes to the financial statements provides detailed information on
the financial reporting entity.

The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill



Financial Overview

The University maintained its solid financial position at June 30, 2020. The current ratio at June 30, 2020 was 3.6 times, compared to 3.5
times at June 30, 2019. Net position, which represents the residual interest in the University's assets and deferred outflows of resources
after deducting liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, was $2.3 billion at June 30, 2020, consistent with $2.3 billion (as restated)
at June 30, 2019. The University's total assets and deferred outflows of resources were $12.0 billion, and the total liabilities and deferred
inflows were $9.7 billion at June 30, 2020.

A comparison of the total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and net position at
June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2019, respectively, along with the major components of the changes in net position for the two fiscal years is
presented below. Net position increased 0.5% at June 30, 2020, from the prior year's restated balance.

Statement of Net Position Statement of Revenues, Expenses
Dollars in thousands and Changes in Net Position
Dollars in thousands

$12M $4M
B2 $2,258,094
$10M |
$3M
$8M
I I | $2,226,992 $2,296,008
$6M $11,986,857 I I $11,788,902 | $2M
$4M
| | | s1u
$2M
I I | $460,211
$0M $0M
2020 2019 2020 2019
(as restated) (as restated)

Il Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
[ Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Net Position

Operating Revenues
Net Nonoperating Revenues
Capital Gifts, Appropriations, Grants and Endowments

Operating Expenses
Increase in Net Position

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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The University's financial statements have been prepared in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which
establishes standards for external financial reporting for public
colleges and universities. These statements are presented on a
consolidated basis to focus on the University as a whole. The full
scope of the University's activities is a single business-type activity
and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic
financial statements.

The University's financial statements include the following financial
statements with related note disclosures:

. Statement of Net Position for the University
- Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position for the University
. Statement of Cash Flows for the University
. Statement of Financial Position for Component Units
of the University
. Statement of Activities for Component Units of the University

Management's Discussion and Analysis provides information
regarding the Statement of Net Position for the University and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the University.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of
the University at the end of the fiscal year, and includes all assets
and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources, segregating the assets and liabilities into current
and noncurrent components. The following table summarizes the
University's Statement of Net Position on June 30, 2020 and June
30, 2019:

Condensed Statement of Net Position
Dollars in thousands

2019 Percent

2020 (asrestated) Change
Assets:
Current Assets $1,734,944 $1,681,983 &l
Noncurrent Assets:
Endowment, Restricted,
and Other Investments 6,279,015 6,195,624 3
Capital Assets, Net 3,050,507 3,122,915 (2.3)
Other Noncurrent Assets 253,777 251,080 11
Total Assets 11,318,243 11,251,602 0.6
Total Deferred Outflows of
Resources 668,614 537,300 24.4
Liabilities:
Current Portion of Long-Term
Liabilities 96,795 99,647 (2.9)
Other Current Liabilities 389,910 375,970 3.7
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Funds Held in Trust for Pool
Participants 4,062,395 3,917,847 3.7
Long-Term Liabilities, Net 4,009,613 3,757,114 6.7
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 178,451 136,668 30.6
Total Liabilities 8,737,164 8,287,246 5.4
Total Deferred Inflows of
Resources 979,778 1,243,562 (21.2)
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,682,287 1,728,392 (2.7)
Restricted 2,423,067 2,413,804 0.4
Unrestricted (1,835,439) (1,884,102) (2.6)
Total Net Position $2,269,915 $2,258,094 0.5



Current Assets and Liabilities

As derived from the Statement of Net Position, working capital was
$1.2 billion at June 30, 2020, compared to $1.2 billion at June 30, 2019.
Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.
Current assets were $1.7 billion at June 30, 2020, consistent with
$1.7 billion at June 30, 2019.

Endowment, Restricted and Other Investments

Investment assets — Total endowment, restricted and other invest-
ments were $6.3 billion at June 30, 2020. Of the $6.3 billion invested,
approximately $3.0 billion are assets not owned by the University
and not part of the University's reporting entity, but rather are
owned by other UNC System campuses and their affiliates who
have elected to pool their assets with the University's through the
UNC Investment Fund, LLC. These funds are classified as funds held
in trust for pool participants in the University’s financial statements.

The total invested assets of $6.3 billion represents an increase of
1.3% from June 30, 2019. This increase is the net result of funds
added to investments, realized and unrealized investment earnings,
scheduled payouts and fund withdrawals.

Endowment management — The endowment assets are invested
with The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation
Investment Fund, Inc. (Chapel Hill Investment Fund or CHIF),
further detailed in Note 1A. It is expected that all, or almost all, of
the assets of the Chapel Hill Investment Fund will be invested in
the UNC Investment Fund, LLC (UNC Investment Fund or UNCIF),
an investment pool organized by the Chapel Hill Investment Fund
to allow the University, along with other constituent institutions of
the UNC System and affiliated organizations, to pool investment
resources.

Endowment distribution — The CHIF investment objective is
to earn a long-term real (i.e,, inflation-adjusted) rate of return of
approximately 5.5% per year. This objective is intended to support
the Chapel Hill Investment Fund's distribution policy providing
a stable source of spending support that is sustainable over the
long term while preserving the purchasing power of the invested
funds. The distribution rate is determined annually by its board of
directors. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the distribution
rate was 4.8%.

Recognizing that severe market declines periodically occur, a
University Statutory Endowment policy (established pursuant to
North Carolina General Statute 116-36) addresses the provisions
of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA). The policy indicates that campus departments shall

examine the endowment-supported activity for the upcoming
fiscal year for possible deferment of program expenses, and if
appropriate, pursue alternative funding for essential activities and
consult with donors regarding other funding options for program
support. Invasion of endowment principal is an option of last
resort and will only be done consistent with approved limitations
to preserve the endowment principal’s value.

Endowment performance — For fiscal year 2020, the UNC
Investment Fund recorded a 2.3% investment return, compared
to the prior year's return of 7.7%. While the UNCIF's fiscal year
2020 return failed to exceed the primary long-term objective of
earning a real rate of return of at least 5.5% plus inflation (which
amounted to 6.2% in fiscal year 2020), the UNCIF's return did,
however, exceed the Strategic Investment Policy Portfolio (SIPP)
return of 2.1% in fiscal year 2020. Moreover, for the year, five of the
UNCIF's seven primary asset classes generated positive returns
and four exceeded their respective SIPP benchmarks.

Over a longer term time horizon, UNCIF's five-year annualized
performance of 6.3% surpassed its SIPP return of 5.6%, but did
not meet the primary objective of earning an average annual
rate of return of at least 5.5% plus inflation, net of all fees, over a
rolling five-year period (which amounted to 71% for the period).
The UNCIF's ten-year annualized return of 8.5% also surpassed
its SIPP return of 8.0% and met the primary return objective of
earning an average annual rate of return of at least 5.5% plus
inflation, net of all fees, over a rolling ten-year period (which was
7.2% for the period). Over the last three-, five- and ten-year periods,
the UNCIF's performance ranked in the top quartile of the BNY
Mellon Endowment & Foundation universe.

Capital Assets and Debt Management

Overall, capital assets, net declined $72.4 million. This decrease
was driven by a change in the useful life of the University's ERP
system along with a decrease in the amount of capital gifts
received during the current year.

In fiscal year 2020, the construction of a 37,000-square-foot
building at the Mountain Area Health Education Center in
Asheville, North Carolina was completed along with several
window and HVAC improvements.

Major projects in construction include: UNC School of Medicine's
Medical Education Building, the UNC Hussman School of
Journalism and Media's Curtis Media Center, and the renovation of
Beard Hall for the Eshelman School of Pharmacy. Projects related
to UNC Athletics include a new indoor practice facility and a
soccer and lacrosse stadium.

33



34

Multiple campus safety upgrades are in design. These projects
will upgrade the emergency operations centers in South Building,
the Public Safety Building and the Environment, Health and Safety
Building and will install approximately 800 security cameras on
campus. In addition, a new design is underway to replace the
University's Central Alarm Communicator System for University
fire alarms with a radio mesh network system.

A summary of changes in capital assets is disclosed in Note 6.
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization,
at June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Capital Assets
Dollars in thousands

Percent

2020 2019 Change
Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress $114,740 $101,562 13.0
Land and Other Nondepreciable 237,295 220,289 35
Assets
Buildings, Net 1,984,676 2,011,186 (1.3)
General Infrastructure, Net 480,212 505,842 (5.1)
Machinery, Equipment and Computer 233584 275,036 (15.1)
Software, Net
Total $3,050,507 $3,122,915 (2.3)

Capital financing — During fiscal year 2020, the University
continued to use its commercial paper program to provide
low-cost bridge financing for capital projects with the intent to
refinance all, or a portion of the funding, through the issuance of
long-term bonds.

During fiscal year 2020, the University issued $10.0 million in
commercial paper debt to fund the Media and Communications
Center project for UNC Athletics, Division of Laboratory Animal
Medicine (Division of Comparative Medicine) renovations, the
Kenan Laboratories renovation for applied physical sciences
department, and the Translational Research Building. The balance
of commercial paper debt was $35.0 million at June 30, 2020, and
$25.0 million at June 30, 2019.

Debt management — The University maintains a combination of
variable and fixed-rate debt, consistent with its debt management
policy. Additional details on rates and maturity can be found in
Note 10 - Long-Term Liabilities.

The University’s debt policy uses two key ratios to measure debt
capacity, financial health and credit quality. The debt service to
operations ratio provides an indicator of the University's ability to
repay annual principal and interest relative to its overall operating
expenses. The expendable resources to debt ratio measures
unrestricted and restricted expendable net position to funded debt
and serves as a relative indicator of financial health or cushion. The
unrestricted net position included in this calculation excludes the
impact of the net pension and net Other Postemployment Benefits
liabilities since these do not have an impact on the University's
ability to pay debt. Please see Note 13 — Net Position for additional
information. Each ratio is compared to the University's debt policy
standard. At June 30, 2020, the expendable resources to debt ratio
was 2.3 times, and the debt service to operations ratio was 2.6%.
Results of both ratios comply with the University’'s debt policy and
indicate healthy coverage of debt requirements.

Debt Service to Operations

Percent
5.0
4.0
4.0
3.0
2.0 29 2.8 27
' 2.6

1.0

0
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University Debt Policy (Maximum)
Expendable Resources to Debt
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15
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University Debt Policy (Minimum)



As a function of its debt management strategy, the University
retained a balance of $261.1 million in unrestricted cash and invest-
ments for the purposes of payment of debt-related obligations to
include certain bullet maturities. No formal board designation,
external requirement or mandatory sinking fund exists to otherwise
restrict the use of these funds as of June 30, 2020.

The University continues to maintain its long-term bond ratings of
Aaa/AAA/AAA from Moody's Investor Services, Standard & Poor's
Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings, respectively.

Other Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

Excluding investments and capital assets discussed above,
other noncurrent assets were $253.8 million at June 30, 2020,
and $251.1 million at June 30, 2019, as restated, reflecting a
11% increase, primarily driven by a reclassification from Cash
Surrender Value of Life Insurance caption to Investments. Other
noncurrent assets include restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, notes receivable, investments in joint ventures,
beneficial interest in assets held by others, and the net other
postemployment benefits asset.

Total noncurrent liabilities were $8.3 billion at June 30, 2020, and
$7.8 billion at June 30, 2019. These include net OPEB liability of $2.2
billion at June 30, 2020, and $1.9 billion at June 30, 2019, as well as
funds held in trust for the University's affiliated foundations and
other campuses in the UNC System and their affiliates of $4.1 billion
at June 30, 2020, and $3.9 billion at June 30, 2019. These two items
are the primary reasons for the increase. For more information
on the change in OPEB amounts, refer to Note 10 — Long-Term
Liabilities and Note 17 — Other Postemployment Benefits.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources were $668.6 million at June 30, 2020,
and $537.3 million at June 30, 2019, reflecting a 24.4% increase
driven primarily by increases in deferred outflows related to OPEB.
This is due to a change in the University's proportionate share of
contributions. Deferred inflows of resources were $1.0 billion at
June 30, 2020, and $1.2 billion at June 30, 2019, reflecting a 21.2%
decrease driven primarily by changes in actuarial assumptions for
deferred inflows related to OPEB.

Net Position

Net position represents the value of the University's assets and
deferred outflows of resources after liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources are deducted. The University's net position was steady
at $2.3 billion at June 30, 2020, and $2.3 billion (as restated) at June
30, 2019.

2020 Net Position: $2,269,915
Dollars in thousands

$2.5M

$1.5M

$0.5M $1,682,287

$1,509,141

$913,926

$OM

($0.5M)

($1.5M)

($2.5M)

[ unrestricted

I Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted Expendable

B Restricted Nonexpendable

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position presents the University's results of operations. The state-
ments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the prior year

are summarized as follows:

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Net Position

Dollars in thousands

2019 Percent

2020 (asrestated) Change
Operating Revenues:
Student Tuition and Fees, Net $400,349 $424,391 (5.7)
Grants and Contracts 887,343 866,141 2.4
Sales and Services, Net 926,106 995,348 (7.0)
Other Operating Revenues 13,195 10,128 30.3
Total Operating Revenues 2,226,993 2,296,008 (3.0)
Operating Expenses 3,188,788 3,050,681 4.5
Operating Loss (961,795) (754,673) 27.4
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
State Appropriations 534,766 543,274 (1.6)
Student Financial Aid 44,316 43,302 2.3
Noncapital Contributions, Net 314,963 273,851 15.0
Investment Income, Net 95,460 206,536 (53.8)
Interest and Fees on Debt (51,302) (51,052) 0.5
Other Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) (3,411) 104,550 (103.3)
Net Nonoperating Revenues 934,792 1,120,461 (16.6)
Income (Loss) Before Other
Revenues (27,003) 365,788  (107.4)
Capital Appropriations 1,452 4,060 (64.2)
Capital Contributions 20,629 62,823 (67.2)
Additions to Permanent Endowments 16,743 27,540 (39.2)
Increase in Net Position 11,821 460,211 (97.4)
Net Position — July 1 2,258,094 1,851,379 22.0
Restatements - (53,496) -
Net Position — June 30 $2,269.915 $2,258,094 0.5

FY 2019-2020 revenues and other changes total $3,255,322 and expenses total

$3,243,501.

FY 2018-2019 revenues and other changes total $3,561,944 and expenses total

$3,101,733.

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues represent resources generated by the
University in fulfilling its instruction, research and public service
missions. Student tuition and fees (net) for FY 2020 decreased
5.7% over the prior year. This reduction is a result of the global
pandemic during spring 2020 which caused the cancellation of
Executive Education programs along with lower enrollment for the
Executive MBA program and the online Master in Accountancy
program during the fiscal year.

Revenues and expenditures from sponsored projects remained
steady in FY 2020 as compared to FY 2019. In terms of research
funding, faculty secured $1.05 billion in sponsored program
funding in FY 2020. That is a substantial increase from FY 2019
where we received $941 million. Consequently, there is still an
upward trajectory for overall research activity at UNC-Chapel
Hill. Sponsored project funding comes in the form of grants and
contracts awarded by federal and state agencies, foundations,
nonprofit organizations, corporations and associations, with the
federal government providing the majority of the awards. Securing
sponsored program funding has become an increasingly compet-
itive endeavor, particularly as federal funding becomes more and
more competitive. A key factor in dealing with such competitive
pressures is diversifying funding sources and bringing in more
awards from foundations and private industry.

The National Institutes of Health (NIH) remained the University's
single largest funding source, with awards totaling $523 million,
which was up from the fiscal year 2019 total of $473 million.
The NIH's strong and ongoing support reflects positively on
the University's health-related professional schools (dentistry,
medicine, nursing, pharmacy and public health), UNC Health and
its teaching hospitals, and basic and social science units in the
College of Arts & Sciences.

The University’s other top funders were the National Science
Foundation, $53.2 million; the U.S. Agency for International
Development (USAID) at $36.3 million; and the U.S. Department
of Education at $25.1 million. The University’'s multidisciplinary
research centers and institutes within the Vice Chancellor's
Division continue to play a growing role in bringing research
funding to North Carolina, accounting for approximately $169.7
million, which is up from the FY 2019 total of $146.4 million, and
represents approximately 16% of the total awards in FY 2020.

Sales and services (net) decreased 7.0% in FY 2020 which
includes the revenues of campus auxiliary operations such as
student housing, campus health services, the utilities system,
and parking and transportation, as well as revenues from patient
services provided by the professional health care clinics. The
revenue component of sales and services from the professional



health care clinics decreased 3.1% as a direct result of the COVID-19 pandemic
which caused many clinics to close in March. Also, as students left campus for the
semester in March 2020, partial refunds were issued for housing, parking and dining,
and spending on campus was curbed.

Operating Expenses

The University's operating expenses were $3.2 billion for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020, an increase of 4.5% from the prior year.

Operating Expenses by Natural Clasification
Dollars in thousands

2019 Percent

2020 (asrestated) Change

Salaries and Benefits $1,802,250 $1,716,743 5.0
Supplies and Services 1,018,615 1,013,233 0.5
Scholarships and Fellowships 106,483 88,821 19.9
Utilities 81,722 89,640 (8.8)
Depreciation/Amortization 179,718 142,244 26.3
Total Operating Expenses $3,188,788 $3,050,681 4.5

Salaries and benefits increased 5.0% with additional hiring in the medical area
along with increases in pension and OPEB expenses. Scholarships and fellow-
ships increased 19.9% due to new activity along with a reduction in scholarship
allowance due to student refunds issued due to COVID-19. Depreciation and
amortization increased 26.3% due to a change in the useful life of the University
ERP system to 10 years.

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

State appropriations, noncapital contributions and investment income (net) are
considered nonoperating because they are not generated by the University's
principal, ongoing operations. State appropriations are provided to help fund
operating expenses.

State appropriations revenue totaled $534.8 million for FY 2020, a decrease of 1.6%
from the $543.3 million received during the prior year. In FY 2019, the University
received a higher one-time special appropriation including allocations for Area
Health Education Centers, legislative state increases and enrollment growth.

Investment returns decreased $111.1 million, which reflects the market downturn
in FY 2020. Refer to the Endowment Performance subsection in the Endowment,
Restricted and Other Investments section for additional discussion and analysis.
Investment income includes investment yield and realized and unrealized gains and
losses, net of investment management fees.

Other nonoperating revenues decreased $108.0 million, which directly relates to
component unit activity in FY 2019.



Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

Operating and nonoperating revenues such as state appropriations,
noncapital grants, noncapital gifts and investment income are
used to fund University operations. The following chart illustrates
the University's operating and nonoperating revenues, which total
$3.2 billion for fiscal year 2020. As seen in the chart, the University
has a diversified revenue base.

2020 Revenues by Source: $3,216,498
Dollars in thousands

<1%

<1% —

Student Tuition and Fees, Net — $400,349

Federal Grants and Contracts — $722,462

State and Local Grants and Contracts — $15,207
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts — $149,674
Patient Services, Net — $491,045

Sales and Services, Net — $435,061

Other Operating Revenues — $13,195

Other — $989,505
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Other Changes in Net Position

Capital contributions decreased from $62.8 million to $20.6
million in FY 2020. This decrease is driven by gifts from the
Educational Foundation to UNC Athletics in the previous fiscal year
including the field hockey stadium, locker room renovations and
Finley Fields improvements.

17%

1%

10%

3%

[ state Appropriations — $534,766

[ Sstudent Financial Aid — $44,316
Noncapital Contributions — $314,963
Investment Income, Net — $95,460



The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill remains a
financially sound institution, even as it navigates the challenges
wrought by the pandemic, with a robust and diverse revenue
base, a healthy endowment, strong tradition of private giving,
prudent expense management, high demand for admission and
a commitment to excellence.

After beginning the fall semester with a hybrid approach to
in-person and online instruction, the University made the
decision to pivot to remote instruction for all undergraduate
students. Graduate, professional and health affairs schools were
not impacted by this change. Students were able to cancel their
residence hall leases without penalty. Residents who had hardships,
such as lack of access to reliable internet access, international
students or student-athletes had the option to remain on campus.
In response to the transition to online instruction, the University
focused on expense reduction in auxiliary areas such as athletics,
housing, dining, and parking.

The pandemic is expected to continue to have a significant and
uncertain impact on the University's operations but there are plans
to transition back to a hybrid on-campus approach in spring 2021
with different modes of instruction. Residence halls will be filled
at single occupancy levels, with ample quarantine and isolation
rooms throughout campus.

The University received $4.5 million from the State of North
Carolina COVID-19 Recovery Act to cover increased costs
for online coursework, implementation of a digital learning
accelerator, providing sanitation and other expenses for ongoing
campus operations, and covering necessary eligible expenses
for students and employees. These funds must be spent by Dec.
2020. In addition, the University was awarded $29.0 million to
allocate to the N.C. Policy Collaboratory for the development
of countermeasures for COVID-19, a vaccine for COVID-19,
community testing initiatives, and other research to address
health and economic impacts of COVID-19.

The University received $8.6 million for the student portion of the
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) to provide
emergency financial aid grants to students for expenses related
to the disruption of campus operations. In addition, the University
received $8.6 million to cover any costs associated with significant
changes to the delivery of instruction due to the Pandemic.

Tuition rates for the ensuing FY 2021 remain consistent with 2020
Academic Year rates for all resident and non-resident students.
The University continues to return a portion of tuition revenue

to students in the form of need-based aid and combined with
other sources, continues to provide financial aid to meet 100% of
documented need for undergraduate students.

State appropriations for FY 2021 are budgeted to be $531.3 million.
Initiatives funded by the UNC System such as faculty recruitment
and retention, campus scholarship awards, department-based
research and other programs may increase the state appropriations
budget during the 2021 fiscal year.

Sponsored awards are a proven and reliable source in support
of the University's research mission. The University's research
enterprise has doubled in the last decade. It directly supports more
than 10,000 positions statewide. In a 2018 report titled The Top
American Research Universities, the University was ranked one of
the top six public universities. The report, produced by the Center
for Measuring University Performance, assessed areas such as
research, private support, faculty strength and advanced training.
Strong financial support from North Carolina’s elected officials
has helped build the infrastructure that enabled this growth, as
have strong collaborative ties to Duke University and NC State
University in the Research Triangle Park region.

Philanthropic efforts continued to show strength and momentum
in FY 2020, with new cash and commitments totaling $565 million,
the University's third best year ever. More than 60,000 alumni and
friends contributed to the Campaign for Carolina in support of the
University's mission.

Transformative commitments included funds to expand facilities
for programs dedicated to sports medicine, sport-related
traumatic brain injury and concussion research, and to create
the Stallings-Evans Sports Medicine Complex; a $25 million gift
to name the UNC Hussman School of Journalism and Media; a
$15 million gift to UNC Athletics in honor of the late Jim Komen,
Sr. to support student-athletes’ lifelong success and to name a
new football practice facility; and $20 million raised by a donor
challenge to support the Morehead-Cain scholarship program.
The University's annual day of giving, GiveUNC, received more
than $7.7 million, its best performance ever.

Donors also gave to special funds established to respond to the
COVID-19 pandemic. These benefited students facing financial
hardships, UNC Health's personnel on the frontlines, and
researchers pursuing vaccines and treatments.

Investment income provides an important distribution of earnings
in support of the University's mission. Approximately $3.6 billion
is invested with the UNC Investment Fund. The achievement of
investment objectives cannot be realized unless a substantial
portion of assets are invested in securities which are subject to
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market volatility. The UNC Investment Fund does not seek to
eliminate risk, but to balance volatility and expected return. This
strategy requires investments in different asset classes with
proper diversification in order to minimize the probability of loss
while generating investment returns sufficient to meet program
objectives. As it relates to the Fund, diversification is primarily
achieved through the strategic asset allocation at the aggregate
level and then augmented by strategies mandated with individual
investment managers.

Since asset allocation is the fundamental driver of risk and return,
the framework of the UNC Investment Fund has been designed to
optimize risk-adjusted returns in support of achieving long-term
objectives. The UNC Investment Fund has established ranges
or bands for each respective asset class in order to provide a
controlled framework for managing risk. Asset allocations are
adjusted periodically, in accordance with policy objectives, to
reflect market conditions and align assets with planned perfor-
mance expectations. Asset allocations represent the best estimate
at a given measurement date for supporting long-term expected
rate of return objectives.

Given the general risks and uncertainties in financial markets,
the UNC Investment Fund'’s strategy tends to focus on capital
preservation and downside protection as an overall approach.
Many financial asset classes are currently quite expensive on
a historical basis suggesting that their forward-looking return
profiles may be muted. It is due to these factors that the UNC
Investment Fund tends to favor those investment opportunities
that provide more modest returns with less volatility rather than
more aggressive strategies. Current market conditions require
greater flexibility and prudent investing to preserve and protect
capital while incrementally generating return in a risk-efficient
manner. Actual investment experience and expectations will vary
depending upon the current state environment, time horizon and
other factors.

According to Moody's Investor Service Outlook - Higher Education
- U.S,, March 2020, the outlook for higher education has changed
to negative from stable due to the negative financial impact of
the coronavirus pandemic. Universities will see an immediate
revenue decline and face rising expenses. Brand strength and
revenue diversity are expected to ease some of the pressures for
large research universities. The University's ability to grow the
base and mix of its revenue is an important part of its financial
and operational strategy. The University’s mixture of funding
sources includes student tuition, state appropriations, federal,
state and other research awards, philanthropy, sales from clinical
and business operations, and investment returns. This diversity
of resources provides flexibility for the University to withstand
funding fluctuations.

The University faces significant pressure on its ability to manage
expenses while maintaining the competitive salaries and benefits
needed to attract top faculty. Continued effective leadership and
commitment to financial health will fortify the University as it
continues to thrive. While it is not possible to predict future results,
management is actively pursuing strategies to ensure that the
University's financial position will remain strong and steady while
remaining dedicated to the University's mission.
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Statement of Net Position for the University

June 30, 2020

Current Assets:

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $588,144,959 Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7) 167,871,534
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 290,713,383 Due to State of North Carolina Component Units 15,571,812
Short-Term Investments 343,492,030 Due to University Component Units 10,972,592
Restricted Short-Term Investments 153,062,306 Deposits Payable 13,283,392
Receivables, Net (Note 5) 226,300,955 Funds Held for Others 1,133,012
Due from State of North Carolina Component Units 84,157,646 Unearned Revenue 128,673,104
Inventories 21,356,355 Interest Payable 3,092,818
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 5) 5,367,032 Obligations Under Reverse Repurchase Agreements 14,312,000
Other Assets 22,349,807 Short-Term Debt (Note 9) 35,000,000
Total Current Assets 1,734,944,473 Long-Term Liabilities - Current Portion (Note 10) 96,794,518
Noncurrent Assets: Total Current Liabilities 486,704,782
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 140,890,256 Noncurrent Liabilities:
Receivables, Net (Note 5) 57,535,259 U.S. Government Grants Refundable 21,320,811
Endowment Investments 2,415,818,783 Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants 4,062,395,359
Restricted Investments 3,829,378,385 Hedging Derivative Liability 157,129,612
Other Investments 33,817,326 Long-Term Liabilities, Net (Note 10) 4,009,613,407
Notes Receivable, Net (Note 5) 33,462,455 Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,250,459,189
Investment in Joint Ventures (Note 22) 17,455,745 Total Liabilities 8,737,163,971
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 1,445,302
Capital Assets - Nondepreciable (Note 6) 352,035,814 Deferred Inflows for Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 20,156,298
Capital Assets - Depreciable, Net (Note 6) 2,698,471,623 Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (Note 16) 659,085
Total Noncurrent Assets 9,583,298,279 Deferred Inflows Related to Other Postemployment
TR e Benefits (Note 17) 958,962,763
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 979,778,146

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging
Derivatives

157,129,612

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

1,682,287,193

Deferred Loss on Refunding 9,883,702 Restricted — Nonexpendable 913,925,586
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions (Note 16) 139,747,208 Restricted — Expendable 1,509,141,486
Deferred Outflows Related to Other Postemployment Unrestricted (1,835,439,597)
Benefits (Note 17) 361,853,511

Total Net Position $2,269,914,668
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 668,614,033

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an

statement.

integral part of this



Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the University
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Operating Revenues

Student Tuition and Fees, Net (Note 14) $400,348,766
Patient Services, Net (Note 14) 491,044,506
Federal Grants and Contracts 722,461,787
State and Local Grants and Contracts 15,207,330
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts 149,674,143
Sales and Services, Net (Note 14) 435,061,393
Interest Earnings on Loans 7,504,049
Other Operating Revenues 5,690,411
Total Operating Revenues 2,226,992,385

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 1,802,250,379
Supplies and Services 1,018,614,534
Scholarships and Fellowships 106,483,355
Utilities 81,722,034
Depreciation/Amortization 179,717,871
Total Operating Expenses 3,188,788,173
Operating Loss (961,795,788)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

State Appropriations 534,765,894
Student Financial Aid 44,316,294
Federal Aid - COVID-19 5,834,424

Noncapital Contributions, Net (Note 14)

314,962,706

Investment Income (Net of Investment Expense of $24,885,190)

95,460,153

Interest and Fees on Debt

(51,302,015)

Federal Interest Subsidy on Debt

2,143,055

Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

(11,389,104)

Net Nonoperating Revenues 934,791,407
Loss Before Other Revenues (27,004,381)
Capital Appropriations 1,452,000
Capital Contributions 20,629,312
Additions to Endowments 16,743,402
Total Other Revenues 38,824,714
Increase in Net Position 11,820,333

Net Position
Net Position — July 1, 2019, as Restated (Note 25) 2,258,094,335
Net Position — June 30, 2020 $2,269,914,668

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the University
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Received from Customers $2,265,111,335 Operating Loss ($961,795,788)
Payments to Employees and Fringe Benefits (1,873,344,193) Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Payments to Vendors and Suppliers (1,111,501,771)
Depreciation/Amortization Expense 179,717,871
Payments for Scholarships and Fellowships (106,483,355)
Allowances and Write-Offs 574,162
Loans Issued (5,367,559)
; Other Nonoperating Expenses (11,389,104)
Collection of Loans 5,787,994
Changes in Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Interest Earned on Loans 7,951,905
Receivables, Net 13,989,737
Other Payments (37,485,208)
Inventories (1,466,151)
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (855,330,852)
Other Assets 21,096
Notes Receivable, Net 314,932
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Asset (887,159)
State Appropriations 534,765,894
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 45,540,980
Student Financial Aid 44,316,294
Deferred Outflows Related to Other Postemployment Benefits (130,054,541)
Federal Aid — COVID-19 5,834,424
Changes in Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Noncapital Contributions 330,669,785
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (14,561,881)
Additions to Endowments 16,743,402
Unearned Revenue 13,175,094
William D. Ford Direct Lending Receipts 168,533,773
— - - - Net Pension Liability 13,102,693
William D. Ford Direct Lending Disbursements (168,533,773)
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 259,171,145
Related Activity Agency Receipts 611,124,146
. ; Compensated Absences 12,457,603
Related Activity Agency Disbursements (374,030,372)
Deposits Payable (1,407,244)
Payments for Annuities and Life Income
Payable Under Split-Interest Agreements (8,513,613) Workers' Compensation Liability (642,233)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 1,160,909,960 U.S. Government Grants Refundable (5,677,333)
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions (2,988,228)
Cash Flows from Capital Financing And Related Financing Activities Deferred Inflows Related to Other Postemployment Benefits (262,526,503)
Proceeds from Capital Debt 10,000,000 Net Cash Used by Operating Activities ($855,330,852)
Capital Appropriations 1,452,000
Capital Contributions 13,564,590 Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (106,852,532) Assets Acquired through Assumption of a Liability $374,501
Principal Paid on Capital Debt and Leases (32,288,219) Assets Acquired through a Gift 7,064,722
Interest and Fees Paid on Capital Debt and Leases (51,322,816) Change in Fair Value of Investments (3,418,179)
Federal Interest Subsidy on Debt Received 2,143,055 Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (4,274,384)
Net Cash Used by Capital Financing and Amortization of Bond Premiums/Discounts 407,564
Related Financing Activities (163,303,922)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of this statement.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 5,129,965,235
Investment Income 100,429,728
Purchase of Investments and Related Fees (5,175,126,047)
Change in Obligations under Reverse Repurchase

Agreements 3,744,000
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 59,012,916
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 201,288,102
Cash and Cash Equivalents — July 1, 2019 818,460,496

Cash and Cash Equivalents — June 30, 2020 $1,019,748,598



Statement of Financial Position for Component Units of the University
June 30, 2020

UNC-CH Arts The Educational

and Sciences Foundation Scholarship UNC Health
Assets Foundation, Inc. Endowment Trust Foundation, Inc.

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $29,965,661 $13,124,276 $37,806,098
Promises to Give, Net 35,969,865 10,019,027 6,654,389
Contribution Receivable from Split-Interest Agreements 4,990,552

Accounts Receivable 1,202,698

Receivable from UNC Foundation 4,154,576
Other Receivables 2,986,372

Other Current Assets 411,444
Total Current Assets 70,124,596 28,133,855 49,026,507

Property and Equipment:

Capital Assets, Net 6,216,976 454,814
Total Property and Equipment 6,216,976 454,814
Other Assets:

Investments 277,794,444 254,891,081 348,836,643
Promises to Give, Net 6,746,866
Split-Interest Agreements 2,577,274

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance 1,230,479

Other Assets 3,319,808
Total Other Assets 280,371,718 256,121,560 358,903,317
Total Assets 356,713,290 284,255,415 408,384,638

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 56 1,399,115
Annuities Payable 36,677

Current Portion of Loan Payable 154,667

Total Current Liabilities 154,723 36,677 1,399,115

Long-Term Liabilities:

Loan Payable 2,217,071

Liabilities Under Charitable Remainder Trusts 55,421
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,217,071 55,421
Total Liabilities 2,371,794 36,677 1,454,536

Without Donor Restrictions

Undesignated 8,639,867
Designated by the Board for Endowment 9,930,632
Invested in Property and Equipment 454,814
Total Without Donor Restrictions 61,233,864 19,025,313
With Donor Restrictions 293,107,632 284,218,738 387,904,789
Total Net Assets 354,341,496 284,218,738 406,930,102
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $356,713,290 $284,255,415 $408,384,638

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets for Component Units of the University
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

UNC-CH Arts The Educational

and Sciences Foundation Scholarship UNC Health
Support and Revenue Foundation, Inc. Endowment Trust Foundation, Inc.
Support:
Contributions $24,000,510 $5,576,292 $26,484,306
Donated Support 3,700,015
Change in Value of Split-Interest Agreements (285,954) (106,968)
Contributed Services 4,251,983
Actuarial Adjustment of Annuities Payable 1,818
Endowment Investment Return Designated for Current Operations 11,744,334
Other Contributions 1,618,969
Total Support 27,414,571 18,941,413 30,629,321
Revenue:
Interest and Dividends 5,443,320
Net Unrealized and Realized Gains on Investments 4,045,614 9,661,962
Investment Income 202,670
Other Income 416,159
Total Revenue 4,248,284 15,521,441
Total Support and Revenue 31,662,855 18,941,413 46,150,762

Program Services 20,405,834 12,579,484 27,645,774

Supporting Services:

Fundraising 3,164,712 242,845 5,341,824
Membership development 145,707

Management, Administrative, and General 637,390 395,267 3,726,761
Total Supporting Services 3,802,102 783,819 9,068,585
Bad Debt 31,896

Total Expenses and Bad Debt Expense 24,239,832 13,363,303 36,714,359

Other Changes

Endowment Investment Return in Excess
of Amounts Designated for Current Operations (8,456,364)

Changes in Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions 2,394,597 1,468,672
With Donor Restrictions 5,028,426 (2,878,254) 7,967,731
Total Changes in Net Assets 7,423,023 (2,878,254) 9,436,403
Net Assets — Beginning of Year 346,918,473 287,096,992 397,493,699
Net Assets — End of Year $354,341,496 $284,218,738 $406,930,102

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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A — Financial Reporting Entity

The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting
entity is that elected officials are accountable to their constituents
for their actions. As required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the financial
reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its
component units. An organization other than a primary government
serves as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issues separate
financial statements. The University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hill (University) is a constituent institution of the multi-campus
University of North Carolina System, which is a component unit
of the State of North Carolina and an integral part of the State's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The accompanying financial statements present all funds
belonging to the University and its component units. While the
Board of Governors of the University of North Carolina System
has ultimate responsibility, the Chancellor, the Board of Trustees,
and the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund have delegated
responsibilities for financial accountability of the University's funds.
The University's component units are either blended or discretely
presented in the University's financial statements. See below for
further discussion of the University's component units. Other
related foundations and similar nonprofit corporations for which
the University is not financially accountable are not part of the
accompanying financial statements.

Blended Component Units — Although legally separate, The
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Foundation Investment
Fund, Inc. (Chapel Hill Investment Fund), UNC Investment Fund,
LLC (UNC Investment Fund), UNC Intermediate Pool, LLC (UNC
Intermediate Pool), UNC Management Company, Inc. (Manage-
ment Company), The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Foundation, Inc. (UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation), The Kenan-Flagler
Business School Foundation (Business School Foundation),
WUNC Public Radio, LLC (WUNC), Carolina Research Ventures,
LLC (Research Ventures), and HVPV Holdings, LLC (HVPV),
component units of the University, are reported as if they were
part of the University.

The Chapel Hill Investment Fund was established in January
1997 and is classified as a governmental external investment
pool. The fund is governed by a board consisting of eight to 11
ex-officio directors and two to four elected directors. Ex-officio
directors include all of the members of the Board of Trustees of the
Endowment Fund of the University, which includes the Chair of the

University Board of Trustees, the Chancellor, the Vice Chancellor
for Finance and Operations, and the Vice Chancellor for University
Development. The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation Board may, in its
discretion, elect one or two of its at-large members to the Chapel
Hill Investment Fund Board. The ex-officio directors of the Chapel
Hill Investment Fund may elect one or two directors by unanimous
written consent. The Chapel Hill Investment Fund supports the
University by operating an investment fund for certain eligible
charitable, nonprofit foundations, associations, trusts, endowments,
and funds that are organized and operated primarily to support
the University. Because members of the Board of Directors of the
Chapel Hill Investment Fund are officials or appointed by officials
of the University and the Chapel Hill Investment Fund's primary
purpose is to benefit the University and other organizations
operated primarily to support the University, its financial state-
ments have been blended with those of the University.

The UNC Investment Fund was organized by the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund to allow the University, the UNC System, other
constituent institutions of the UNC System, and certain eligible
affiliated foundations, associations, trusts, and endowments
that support the University and the UNC System, to pool their
resources and invest collectively in investment opportunities
identified, structured, and managed by the Management Company.
The membership interests are offered only to eligible government
entities or tax-exempt organizations that are controlled by or
support the University, the UNC System, or other constituent
institutions of the UNC System. The Chapel Hill Investment Fund
contributed and assigned all of its assets to the UNC Investment
Fund effective January 1, 2003, in exchange for its membership
interest in the UNC Investment Fund. Upon such contribution and
assignment, and in consideration thereof, the UNC Investment
Fund has assumed all liabilities and obligations of the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund in respect of such contributed assets. At June 30,
2020, the Chapel Hill Investment Fund membership interest was
approximately 55% of the UNC Investment Fund total member-
ship interests. Because the Chapel Hill Investment Fund is the
organizer and controlling member of the UNC Investment Fund,
the financial statements of the UNC Investment Fund have been
blended with those of the University.

The UNC Intermediate Pool was organized in May 2013 by the
University to make available an intermediate-term investment fund
for eligible participants. The University is the controlling member.
The UNC Intermediate Pool is classified as a governmental
external investment pool. Eligible participants in the fund include
not only the University but also the UNC System, its constituent
institutions, and/or affiliates and supporting organizations of the
UNC System or such constituent institutions. The University has
retained the Management Company to serve as the investment
manager of the fund. Because the University is the organizer and
controlling member of the UNC Intermediate Pool, the financial



statements of the UNC Intermediate Pool have been blended with
those of the University.

The Management Company is organized and operated exclusively
to support the educational mission of the University. The Manage-
ment Company provides investment management and administra-
tive services to the University, UNC System, and institutions and
affiliated tax-exempt organizations, and performs other functions
for and generally carries out the purposes of the University. The
Management Company is governed by five ex-officio directors
and one to three additional directors as fixed or changed from
time to time by the board, elected by the ex-officio directors. The
ex-officio directors consist of the Chancellor, the Vice Chancellor
for Finance and Operations, the Chair of the University Board of
Trustees, the Chair of the Board of Directors of the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund, and the President of the Management Company.
Because members of the Board of Directors of the Management
Company are officials or appointed by officials of the University
and the Management Company'’s primary purpose is to benefit the
University and other organizations operated primarily to support
the University, its financial statements have been blended with
those of the University.

The UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation is governed by a 19-member board
consisting of nine ex-officio directors and ten elected directors.
Ex-officio directors include the Chair of the University Board of
Trustees, the Chancellor, the Vice Chancellor for Finance and
Operations, and the Vice Chancellor for University Development
(non-voting). In addition, the Board of Trustees elects two ex-officio
directors from among its own members as well as three ex-officio
directors from the Board of Trustees of the Endowment Fund who
have not otherwise been selected. The ten remaining directors
are elected as members of the UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation
Board of Directors by action of the ex-officio directors. The
UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation aids, supports, and promotes
teaching, research, and service in the various educational, scien-
tific, scholarly, professional, artistic, and creative endeavors of
the University. Because members of the Board of Directors of the
UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation are officials or appointed by officials
of the University and the UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation's sole
purpose is to benefit the University, its financial statements have
been blended with those of the University.

On July 1, 2019, the operations of The University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill School of Nursing Foundation, Inc. merged with the
UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation. Information regarding the merger,
including the reason for the combination, is available in the
UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation's financial statements.

The Business School Foundation is governed by a board consisting
of four ex-officio directors and four or more elected directors.
Ex-officio directors include the Dean of the Kenan-Flagler Business

School (Business School), as well as the Business School’s
Chief Financial Officer, Associate Dean of Academic Affairs, and
Associate Dean for MBA Programs. The remaining directors are
elected to the Business School Foundation Board of Directors by
action of the ex-officio directors. The Business School Foundation
aids, promotes, and supports the Kenan-Flagler Business School
at the University. Because members of the Board of Directors of the
Business School Foundation are officials or appointed by officials
of the University, the financial statements of the Business School
Foundation have been blended with those of the University.

WUNC is governed by a board consisting of nine members. Seven
members of the board, at least two of which are current or previous
members of the Board of Trustees of the University, are appointed
by the Board of Trustees of the University. The remaining two board
members are the University's Vice Chancellor of Communications
and the General Manager of the noncommercial educational
radio station WUNC-FM. The purposes of WUNC are to support
the University by holding FCC licenses of noncommercial radio
stations and operating and conducting programming of those
radio stations and NC Public Radio, WUNC-FM, furthering the
University's efforts to extend knowledge-based and educational
services to the citizens of North Carolina and to enhance the
quality of life for the people of the State. Because members of the
Board of Directors of WUNC are officials or appointed by officials
of the University and the primary purpose of WUNC is to benefit
the University, its financial statements have been blended with
those of the University.

Research Ventures is governed by a board consisting of six
designated members and six at-large members. Designated
members include the Chief Financial Officer of the University,
the Chief Executive Officer of the UNC Management Company,
Inc., two members of the Board of Trustees of the University, and
two individuals appointed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
UNC Health Care System. Five at-large members are elected by
the designated members, and one is appointed by UNC Health
Care. Research Ventures supports the educational mission of the
University by performing functions to carry out the purposes of the
University including creating, acquiring, holding, and disposing
of investments on behalf of the University in businesses that
commercialize technology and inventions created at the University
or through use of University resources. Carolina Research Venture
Investment Fund, LLC is a component unit of Research Ventures
and is included in its financial statements. Because a majority
number of the Board of Directors are officials or appointed by
officials of the University and Research Ventures' primary purpose
is to benefit the University, the financial statements of Research
Ventures have been blended with those of the University.

HVPV is governed by the University as a sole member of HVPV.
All decisions with respect to the management of the business and
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affairs of HVPV are made by the University. The University directs,
manages, and controls the business of HVPV. HVPV was formed
for the sole benefit of the University and its purposes include
holding an investment in limited partnership interests of a venture
capital partner and promoting the business thereof. Because the
University has complete authority to make decisions and HVPV'’s
primary purpose is to benefit the University, the financial state-
ments of HVPV have been blended with those of the University.

Separate financial statements for the University's blended
component units may be obtained from the University Controller’s
Office, Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270, or by calling
919-962-1370.

Condensed combining information regarding blended component
units is provided in Note 23 — Blended Component Units.

Discretely Presented Component Units — UNC Health
Foundation, Inc. (UNC Health Foundation), previously known as
The Medical Foundation of North Carolina, Inc., The University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill Arts and Sciences Foundation, Inc.
(Arts and Sciences Foundation), and The Educational Foundation
Scholarship Endowment Trust (Educational Foundation Trust)
are legally separate nonprofit corporations and are reported as
discretely presented component units based on the nature and
significance of their relationship to the University.

The UNC Health Foundation is governed by a board of up to 33
elected directors. The board also includes five ex-officio directors.
The Dean of the UNC School of Medicine and CEO of UNC
Health Care, the Vice Chancellor for University Development, and
the Associate Dean for Medical Alumni Affairs (UNC School of
Medicine) all have voting rights. The President of the UNC Health
Foundation and the President of UNC Hospitals do not. Historically,
the University's School of Medicine has been the major recipient of
financial support from the UNC Health Foundation rather than UNC
Hospitals. Although the University does not control the timing or
amount of receipts from the UNC Health Foundation, the majority
of resources or income that the UNC Health Foundation holds and
invests is restricted to the University by the donors. Because these
restricted resources held by the UNC Health Foundation can only
be used by, or for the benefit of the University, the UNC Health
Foundation is considered a component unit of the University.

The Arts and Sciences Foundation is governed by a board
consisting of five ex-officio directors, 30 elected directors, and
such number of emeritus directors determined from time to
time by the Board of Directors. Staggered terms are set for the
elected directors by the Board of Directors in office at the time of
election. The purpose of the Arts and Sciences Foundation is to
promote and support the University’s College of Arts and Sciences.
Although the University does not control the timing or amount of

receipts from the Arts and Sciences Foundation, the majority of
resources or income that the Arts and Sciences Foundation holds
and invests is restricted to the activities of the University by the
donors. Because these restricted resources held by the Arts and
Sciences Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of
the University, the Arts and Sciences Foundation is considered a
component unit of the University.

The Educational Foundation Trust is governed by The Educational
Foundation Scholarship Endowment Trust Agreement which
provides that The Educational Foundation, Inc. appoints and
designates the voting members of the Investment Committee as
Trustees of the Trust. The Educational Foundation Trust operates
solely to assist the University in providing financial assistance to
students at the University. On an annual basis, the Trustees of the
Educational Foundation Trust appropriates a portion of the net
appreciation on its assets to The Educational Foundation, Inc. in its
capacity as agent for the Educational Foundation Trust. The distri-
bution from the Educational Foundation Trust to The Educational
Foundation, Inc,, is then forwarded by The Educational Foundation,
Inc. to the University to provide financial assistance to students at
the University. Although the University does not control the timing
or amount of receipts from the Educational Foundation Trust, the
majority of the contributions that the Educational Foundation Trust
receives and invests is restricted to the students of the University
by the donors. Because these restricted resources held by the
Educational Foundation Trust can only be used for the benefit of
the students of the University, the Educational Foundation Trust is
considered a component unit of the University.

The UNC Health Foundation, Arts and Sciences Foundation, and
Educational Foundation Trust are private, nonprofit organizations
that report their financial results under the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Codification. As such, certain revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications
have been made to the financial information in the University's
financial statements for these differences.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the UNC Health Foundation,
Arts and Sciences Foundation, and Educational Foundation Trust
distributed $51,431,021 to the University for both restricted and
unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the
UNC Health Foundation, Arts and Sciences Foundation, and
Educational Foundation Trust can be obtained from the University
Controller’'s Office, Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270,
or by calling 919-962-1370.



B — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as prescribed by the GASB.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Finan-
cial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No.
35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management'’s Discussion and
Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, the full scope of the
University’s activities is considered to be a single business-type
activity and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the
basic financial statements.

C — Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the University have been prepared
using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recog-
nized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation
has been incurred, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the University receives (or
gives) value without directly giving (or receiving) equal value
in exchange, include state appropriations, certain grants, and
donations. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated uncollectible
amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met, if probable of collection.

D — Cash and Cash Equivalents

This classification includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, cash
on deposit with private bank accounts, cash on deposit with fiscal
agents, and deposits held by the State Treasurer in the Short-
Term Investment Fund (STIF). The STIF maintained by the State
Treasurer has the general characteristics of a demand deposit
account in that participants may deposit and withdraw cash at
any time without prior notice or penalty.

E — Investments

To the extent available, investments are recorded at fair value based
on quoted market prices in active markets on a trade-date basis.
Additional information regarding the fair value measurement of
investments is disclosed in Note 3. Investments for which a readily
determinable fair value does not exist include investments in hedge
funds and limited partnerships. These investments are carried at
net asset value (NAV) per share as provided by the respective

fund managers of these investments or third party administrators.
The Management Company reviews and evaluates the values
provided by the fund managers as well as the valuation methods
and assumptions used in determining the NAV of such investments.
Because of the inherent uncertainty in the use of estimates, values
that are based on estimates may differ from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed for the investments.
The net change in the value of investments is recognized as a
component of investment income.

Short-term investments include marketable securities representing
the investment of cash that is available for current operations. A
majority of this available cash is invested in the University's Tempo-
rary Pool, a governmental external investment pool.

Endowment investments include the principal amount of gifts and
bequests that, according to donor restrictions, must be held in
perpetuity or for a specified period of time, along with any accumu-
lated investment earnings on such amounts. Further, endowment
investments also include amounts internally designated by the
University for investment in an endowment capacity (i.e. quasi-en-
dowments), along with accumulated investment earnings on
such amounts. Land and other real estate held as investments
by endowments are reported at fair value, consistent with how
investments are generally reported.

F — Receivables

Receivables consist of tuition and fees charged to students and
charges for auxiliary enterprises’ sales and services, as well as
charges to patients for services provided by the UNC Faculty
Physicians and the Dental Faculty Practices. Receivables also
include amounts due from the federal government, state and local
governments, and private sources in connection with reimburse-
ment of allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts and
grants, and pledges that are verifiable, measurable, and expected
to be collected and available for expenditures for which the
resource provider’'s conditions have been satisfied. Receivables
are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

G — Inventories

Inventories, consisting of expendable supplies, postage, fuel held
for consumption, and other merchandise for resale, are valued at
cost or average cost.
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H — Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or acquisi-
tion value at date of donation in the case of gifts. Donated capital
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2015, are stated at fair value as of
the date of donation. The value of assets constructed includes all
material direct and indirect construction costs.

The University capitalizes assets that have a value or cost of $5,000
or greater at the date of acquisition and an estimated useful life of
more than one year except for internally generated software which
is capitalized when the value or cost is $1,000,000 or greater and
other intangible assets which are capitalized when the value or
cost is $100,000 or greater.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets in the
following manner:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 10-75 years
Machinery and Equipment 3-30 years
General Infrastructure 10-75 years
Computer Software 3-20 years

The University's historic property, artwork, and literary collections
are capitalized at cost, acquisition value, or fair value at the date of
donation. These collections are considered inexhaustible and are
therefore not depreciated.

| — Restricted Assets

Certain resources are reported as restricted assets because
restrictions on asset use change the nature or normal under-
standing of the availability of the asset. Resources that are not
available for current operations and are reported as restricted
include resources restricted for the acquisition or construction
of capital assets, resources legally segregated for the payment
of principal and interest as required by debt covenants, unspent
debt proceeds, and endowment and other restricted investments.

J — Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants

Funds held in trust for pool participants represent the external
portion of the University's governmental external investment
pools more fully described in Note 2 — Deposits and Investments.
The assets associated with this liability are included in restricted
investments, cash, and other similar asset accounts.

K — Noncurrent Long-Term Liabilities

Noncurrent long-term liabilities include principal amounts of
long-term debt and other long-term liabilities that will not be paid
within the next fiscal year. Debt is defined as a liability that arises
from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that
may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle
an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is
established. Long-term debt includes: revenue bonds payable,
bonds from direct placements, notes from direct borrowings,
and capital leases payable. Other long-term liabilities include:
compensated absences, annuities and life income payable, net
pension liability, net other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
liability, and workers' compensation.

Revenue bonds payable are reported net of unamortized
premiums or discounts. The University amortizes bond premiums/
discounts over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method
that approximates the effective interest method. Deferred gains
and losses on refundings are amortized over the life of the old
debt or new debt (whichever is shorter) using the straightline
method, and are aggregated as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position.
Issuance costs are expensed in the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

The net pension liability represents the University's proportionate
share of the collective net pension liability reported in the State
of North Carolina's 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
This liability represents the University's portion of the collective
total pension liability less the fiduciary net position of the Teachers’
and State Employees’ Retirement System. See Note 16 — Pension
Plans for further information regarding the University's policies for
recognizing liabilities, expenses, deferred outflows of resources,
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.

The net OPEB liability represents the University's proportionate
share of the collective net OPEB liability reported in the State of
North Carolina's 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
This liability represents the University's portion of the collective
total OPEB liability less the fiduciary net position of the Retiree
Health Benefit Fund. See Note 17 — Other Postemployment
Benefits for further information regarding the University’s policies
for recognizing liabilities, expenses, deferred outflows of resources,
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB.



L — Compensated Absences

The University's policy is to record the cost of vacation leave
when earned. The policy provides for a maximum accumula-
tion of unused vacation leave of 30 days which can be carried
forward each January 1 or for which an employee can be paid
upon termination of employment. When classifying compensated
absences into current and noncurrent, leave is considered taken
using a last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. Also, any accumulated
vacation leave in excess of 30 days at year-end is converted to
sick leave. Under this policy, the accumulated vacation leave for
each employee at June 30 equals the leave carried forward at the
previous December 31 plus the leave earned, less the leave taken
between January 1and June 30.

In addition to the vacation leave described above, compensated
absences include the accumulated unused portion of the special
annual leave bonuses awarded by the North Carolina General
Assembly. The bonus leave balance on December 31 is retained
by employees and transferred into the next calendar year. It is not
subject to the limitation on annual leave carried forward described
above and is not subject to conversion to sick leave.

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave because
the University has no obligation to pay sick leave upon termi-
nation or retirement. However, additional service credit for
retirement pension benefits is given for accumulated sick leave
upon retirement.

M — Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense) until then. The University has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category: the accumulated decrease
in fair value of hedging derivatives, deferred loss on refunding,
deferred outflows related to pensions, and deferred outflows
related to other postemployment benefits.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until then. The University has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category: deferred inflows for irrevocable
split-interest agreements, deferred inflows related to pensions, and
deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits.

N — Net Position

The University's net position is classified as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This represents the Univer-
sity’s total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding liabil-
ities related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are
not included as a component of net investment in capital assets.
Additionally, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of capital assets or related debt are also included
in this component of net position.

Restricted Net Position - Nonexpendable — Nonexpendable
restricted net position includes endowments and similar type
assets whose use is limited by donors or other outside sources,
and, as a condition of the gift, the principal is to be maintained
in perpetuity.

Restricted Net Position - Expendable — Expendable restricted
net position includes resources for which the University is legally
or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions
imposed by external parties.

Unrestricted Net Position — Unrestricted net position includes
resources derived from student tuition and fees, sales and services,
unrestricted gifts, royalties, and interest income. It also includes
the net position of accrued employee benefits such as compen-
sated absences, pension plans, workers' compensation and other
postemployment benefits.

Restricted and unrestricted resources are tracked using a fund
accounting system and are spent in accordance with established
fund authorities. Fund authorities provide rules for the fund activity
and are separately established for restricted and unrestricted activ-
ities. When both restricted and unrestricted funds are available for
expenditure, the decision for funding is transactional based within
the departmental management system in place at the University.
For projects funded by tax-exempt debt proceeds and other
sources, the debt proceeds are always used first. Both restricted
and unrestricted net position include consideration of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. See
Note 13 — Net Position for further information regarding deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that had
a significant effect on unrestricted net position.
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O — Scholarship Discounts

Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from
University charges are reported net of scholarship discounts in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position. The scholarship discount is the difference between
the actual charge for goods and services provided by the Univer-
sity and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties on
the students’ behalf. Student financial assistance grants, such as
Pell grants, and other federal, state, or nongovernmental programs,
are recorded as nonoperating revenues in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
To the extent that revenues from these programs are used to satisfy
tuition, fees, and other charges, the University has recorded a
scholarship discount.

P — Revenue and Expense Recognition

The University classifies its revenues and expenses as operating
or nonoperating in the accompanying Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with the University’s principal
ongoing operations. Operating revenues include activities that
have characteristics of exchange transactions, such as (1) student
tuition and fees, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises,
(3) certain federal, state, and local grants and contracts that are
essentially contracts for services, and (4) interest earned on loans.
Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other
than those related to capital and noncapital financing or investing
activities as defined by GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash
Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Govern-
mental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the character-
istics of nonexchange transactions. Revenues from nonexchange
transactions that represent subsidies or gifts to the University, as
well as investment income, are considered nonoperating since
these are either investing, capital, or noncapital financing activities.
Capital contributions are presented separately after nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

Q — Internal Sales Activities

Certain institutional auxiliary operations provide goods and
services to University departments, as well as to its customers.
These institutional auxiliary operations include activities such
as utility services, telecommunications, central stores, printing
and copy centers, postal services, and repairs and maintenance
services. In addition, the University has other miscellaneous sales

and service units that operated either on a reimbursement or
charge basis. All internal sales activities to University departments
from auxiliary operations and sales and service units have been
eliminated in the accompanying financial statements. These elimi-
nations are recorded by removing the revenue and expense in the
auxiliary operations and sales and service units and, if significant,
allocating any residual balances to those departments receiving
the goods and services during the year.

A — Deposits

Unless specifically exempt, the University is required by North
Carolina General Statute 147-77 to deposit moneys received with
the State Treasurer or with a depository institution in the name
of the State Treasurer. However, the University of North Carolina
Board of Governors, pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1, may authorize the
University to deposit its institutional trust funds in interest-bearing
accounts and other investments authorized by the Board of Gover-
nors, without regard to any statute or rule of law relating to the
investment of funds by fiduciaries. Although specifically exempted,
the University may voluntarily deposit institutional trust funds,
endowment funds, special funds, revenue bond proceeds, debt
service funds, and funds received for services rendered by health
care professionals with the State Treasurer. Special funds consist of
moneys for intercollegiate athletics and agency funds held directly
by the University.

At June 30, 2020, the amount shown on the Statement of Net
Position as cash and cash equivalents includes $785,220,225,
which represents the University's equity position in the State
Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). The STIF (a
portfolio within the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an external
investment pool that is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or subject to any other regulatory oversight
and does not have a credit rating) had a weighted average maturity
of 1.3 years as of June 30, 2020. Assets and shares of the STIF are
valued at fair value. Deposit and investment risks associated with
the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (which includes the State
Treasurer's STIF) are included in the North Carolina Department
of State Treasurer Investment Programs’ separately issued audit
report. This separately issued report can be obtained from the
Department of State Treasurer, 3200 Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC
27604 or can be accessed from the Department of State Treasur-
er's website at www.nctreasurer.com in the Audited Financial
Statements section.



Cash on hand at June 30, 2020, was $555,081. The carrying amount
of the University's deposits not with the State Treasurer was
$233,973,292, and the bank balance was $421,216,373. Custodial
credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Univer-
sity’s deposits may not be returned to it. The University does not
have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2020,
$163,062,606 of the University’s bank balance was exposed to
custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.

B — Investments

University — The University is authorized by the University of
North Carolina Board of Governors pursuant to G.S. 116-36.2 and
Section 600.2.4 of the Policy Manual of the University of North
Carolina to invest its special funds and funds received for services
rendered by health care professionals in the same manner as the
State Treasurer is required to invest, as discussed below.

G.S. 147-69.1(c), applicable to the State’s General Fund, and
G.S. 147-69.2, applicable to institutional trust funds, authorize the
State Treasurer to invest in the following: obligations of or fully
guaranteed by the United States; obligations of certain federal
agencies; repurchase agreements; obligations of the State of
North Carolina; certificates of deposit and other deposit accounts
of specified financial institutions; prime quality commercial paper;
asset-backed securities with specified ratings, specified bills of
exchange or time drafts, and corporate bonds/notes with specified
ratings; general obligations of other states; general obligations
of North Carolina local governments; and obligations of certain
entities with specified ratings.

In accordance with the bond resolutions, bond proceeds and debt
service funds are invested in obligations that will by their terms
mature on or before the date funds are expected to be required for
expenditure or withdrawal.

G.S. 116-36(e) provides that the trustees of the Endowment Fund
shall be responsible for the prudent investment of the Fund in the
exercise of their sound discretion, without regard to any statute or
rule of law relating to the investment of funds by fiduciaries but in
compliance with any lawful condition placed by the donor upon
that part of the Endowment Fund to be invested.

Investments of the University's component units, UNC-Chapel
Hill Foundation, UNC Management Company, Chapel Hill Invest-
ment Fund, UNC Intermediate Pool, UNC Investment Fund and
Business School Foundation, are subject to and restricted by G.S.
36E “Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act”
(UPMIFA) and any requirements placed on them by contract or
donor agreements.

Investments of various funds may be pooled unless prohibited
by statute or by terms of the gift or contract. The University
utilizes investment pools to manage investments and distribute
investment income.

Investments are subject to the following risks as defined by GASB
Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures -
An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 3.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk the University may
face should interest rate variances affect the value of investments.
The University does not have a formal policy that addresses
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter-
party to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The University
does not have a formal policy that addresses credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes
in exchange rates will adversely affect the value of an investment.
The University does not have a formal policy for foreign currency risk.

Temporary Investment Pool (Temporary Pool) — The Temporary
Pool is a fixed income portfolio managed by the Management
Company and Novant Asset Management, LLC. It operates in
conjunction with the University’s Bank of America disbursing
account for all special funds, funds received for services rendered
by health care professionals, and endowment revenue funds
(internal portion) and funds of affiliated foundations (external
portion). Because of the participation in the Temporary Pool by
affiliated foundations, it is considered a governmental external
investment pool. The external portion of the Temporary Pool is
presented in the accompanying financial statements as Funds Held
in Trust for Pool Participants. Fund ownership of the University’s
Temporary Pool is measured using the unit value method. Under
this method, participant activity is recorded on a cost basis in the
UNC-Chapel Hill Money Market System. This is the official means of
recording activity in the Temporary Pool. The Temporary Pool is not
registered with the SEC and is not subject to any formal oversight
other than that provided by the University Board of Trustees. The
University has not provided legally binding guarantees during the
period to support the value of the pool's investments. There are no
involuntary participants in the Temporary Pool.

The Bank of New York Mellon is the custodian for the Temporary
Pool and provides the University with monthly statements defining
income and fair value information. Investments of the Temporary
Pool are generally highly liquid and include (but are not limited to)
U.S. government securities, collateralized mortgage obligations,
asset-backed securities, corporate bonds, and mutual funds. The
University has elected to invest a portion of the Temporary Pool
assets in the Chapel Hill Investment Fund.
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Participants’ cash balances are automatically invested in the Temporary Pool. Income distribution is calculated based on the Average
Daily Balance (ADB) and distributed monthly. The rate earned by an account is dependent upon its account classification. The rates are
set by policy and approved by the Vice Chancellor for Finance and Operations.

The following table presents the Temporary Pool investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2020:

Temporary Pool Investments

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Investment Type Amount Less than 1 1to5 6 to 10 More than 10
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries $91,759,750 $15,233,250 $76,526,500

U.S. Agencies 61,717,898 868,199 26,034,005 $2,629,519 $32,186,175
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 1,378,233 1,378,233
Asset-Backed Securities 1,008,334 1,008,334
Money Market Mutual Funds 4,824,346 4,824,346

Total Debt Securities $160,688,561 $20,925,795 $102,560,505 $2,629,519 $34,572,742
Other Securities:

Domestic Stocks 30,000

Total Temporary Pool Investments

$160,718,561

The University has elected to invest $125,492,823 of Temporary Pool assets in the Chapel Hill Investment Fund. The disclosures for these
investments are not included in the preceding table. Rather, the disclosures for this portion of the Temporary Investment Pool are included
in those for the Chapel Hill Investment Fund.

At June 30, 2020, investments in the Temporary Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure:

Amount AAA, Aaa AA, Aa A BBB, Baa anE:‘.IBé:iw Unrated
U.S. Agencies $61,717,898 $61,717,898
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 1,378,233 17,572  $40,983 $192,047 $232,926 $894,705
Asset-Backed Securities 1,008,334 524,228 484,106
Money Market Mutual Funds 4,824,346 $4,824,346
Totals $68,928,811 $4,824,346 $61,735,470 $40,983 $192,047 $757,154  $1,378,811

Rating Agency: Moody's/Standard & Poor's/Fitch (lowest rating reported above)



Since a separate annual financial report of the Temporary Invest-
ment Pool is not issued, the following additional disclosures are
being provided in the University’s financial statements.

The Temporary Investment Pool's Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position as of and
for the period ended June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2020

Assets:

State Treasurer Investment Fund $55,000,047
Accrued Investment Income 460,441
Chapel Hill Investment Fund 125,492,823
Investments 160,718,561
Total Assets 341,671,872
Total Liabilities -
Net Position As Held in Trust for All Pool Participants:

Internal Portion 232,336,873
External Portion 109,334,999

Total Net Position $341,671,872

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2020

Increase in Net Position from Operations:

Revenues: Investment Income $8,069,361
Expenses: Investment Management (22,552)
Net Increase in Net Position Resulting from

Operations 8,046,809
Distributions to Participants:

Distributions Paid and Payable (8,046,809)
Share Transactions:

Net Share Purchases (226,963,242)
Total Decrease in Net Position (226,963,242)
Net Position:

Beginning of Year 568,635,114

End of Year $341,671,872

UNC Intermediate Pool, LLC — The UNC Intermediate Pool,
LLC (UNC Intermediate Pool) was organized in May 2013 by the
University to make available an intermediate-term investment fund
for eligible participants with the University being the controlling
member. The UNC Intermediate Pool is classified as a govern-
mental external investment pool. Eligible participants in the pool
include not only the University but also the University of North
Carolina System (UNC System), its constituent institutions, and/or
affiliates and supporting organizations of the UNC System or such
constituent institutions. The University has retained the Manage-
ment Company to serve as the investment manager of the pool.

Ownership of the UNC Intermediate Pool is measured using the unit
value method. Under this method, each participant’s investment
balance is determined on a fair value basis. The UNC Intermediate
Pool is not registered with the SEC and is not subject to any formal
oversight beyond that provided by UNC Management Company as
well as an Oversight Committee of University employees appointed
by the Chancellor of the University. The University has not provided
legally binding guarantees during the period to support the value
of the pool's investments. There are no involuntary participants
in the UNC Intermediate Pool. The audited financial statements
for the UNC Intermediate Pool, LLC may be obtained from the
University Controller's Office, Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC
27599-1270, or by calling 919-962-1370.

The Bank of New York Mellon is the custodian for the UNC Inter-
mediate Pool and provides the University with monthly statements
providing income and fair value information. UNC Intermediate Pool
investments are comprised of (but not limited to) shares in mutual
funds, money market accounts, and the UNC Investment Fund.

As of June 30, 2020, the University's membership interest was
approximately 54% of the UNC Intermediate Pool's total member-
ship interests. An affiliated organization, not included in the
University's reporting entity, held the remaining 46% membership
interest. This external portion of the UNC Intermediate Pool is
presented in the accompanying financial statements as Funds
Held in Trust for Pool Participants.
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The following table presents the UNC Intermediate Pool investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2020:

UNC Intermediate Pool

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Investment Type Amount Less than 1 1to5 6to 10 More than 10
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries $5,640,850 $5,640,850

U.S. Agencies 14,468,553 $14,468,553
Mortgage Pass Throughs 1,993,694 1,993,694
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 47,514,690 11,804,091 35,710,599
Asset-Backed Securities 45,814,565 3,920,865 41,893,700
Debt Mutual Funds 242,191,733 $14,111,159 $108,219,149 84,171,539 35,689,886
Money Market Mutual Funds 34,782,926 34,782,926

Domestic Corporate Bonds 6,572,376 50,200 6,401,720 120,456
Foreign Corporate Bonds 9,580,289 7,965,055 1,615,234
Foreign Government Bonds 3,046,332 1,856,060 1,190,272
Total Debt Securities $411,606,008 $48,944,285 $108,219,149 $121,760,180 $132,682,394

Other Securities:

Foreign Stocks $431,288
Credit Based Commingled Funds 48,654,058
Total UNC Intermediate Pool Investments $460,691,354

The University has elected to invest $147,556,180 of assets of the UNC Intermediate Pool in the UNC Investment Fund. The disclosures for
these investments are not included in the preceding table. Rather, the disclosures for this portion of UNC Intermediate Pool investments
are included in those for the UNC Investment Fund.

At June 30, 2020, investments in the UNC Intermediate Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure:

BB, Ba and
Amount AAA, Aaa AA, Aa . BBB, Baa Below Unrated

U.S. Agencies $14,468,553 $14,468,553
Mortgage Pass Throughs 1,993,694 418,505 $1,575,189
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 47,514,690 $981,338 4,141,138 947,269 $10,213,152 $22,682,961 $8,548,832
Asset-Backed Securities 45,814,565 1,901,343 2,646,058 1,341,587 7,217,040 21,712,529 10,996,008
Debt Mutual Funds 242,191,733 7,331,158 53,206,501 177,587,730 4,066,344
Money Market Mutual Funds 34,782,926 34,782,926
Domestic Corporate Bonds 6,572,376 349,291 6,182,518 40,567
Foreign Corporate Bonds 9,580,289 412,588 1,034,090 2,271,961 5,860,150 1,500
Foreign Government Bonds 3,046,332 648,429 622,082 1,775,821
Totals $405,965,158 $37,665,607 $30,066,429 $58,726,718 $199,414,995 $60,504,502 $19,586,907

Rating Agency: Moody's/Standard & Poor's/Fitch (lowest rating reported above).



UNC Chapel Hill Foundation Investment Fund, Inc. (Chapel
Hill Investment Fund) — Chapel Hill Investment Fund is a North
Carolina nonprofit corporation exempt from income tax pursuant
to Section 501(c)(3). It was established in January 1997 and is
classified as a governmental external investment pool. The pool
is utilized to manage the investments for charitable, nonprofit
foundations, associations, trusts, endowments, and funds that are
organized and operated primarily to support the University. The
University's Endowment, UNC-Chapel Hill Foundation, Business
School Foundation, UNC Health Foundation, Arts and Sciences
Foundation, and Educational Foundation Trust are participants in
the Chapel Hill Investment Fund and are included in the Universi-
ty's reporting entity (internal portion). Other affiliated organizations
(external portion) in the Chapel Hill Investment Fund are not
included in the University's reporting entity. Fund ownership of
the Chapel Hill Investment Fund is measured using the unit value
method. Under this method, each participant’s investment balance
is determined on a fair value basis. The external portion of the
Chapel Hill Investment Fund is presented in the accompanying
financial statements as Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants.

The Chapel Hill Investment Fund is not registered with the SEC and
is not subject to any formal oversight other than that provided by
the Chapel Hill Investment Fund Board of Directors (See Note 1A).

The Chapel Hill Investment Fund is the primary participant of UNC
Investment Fund, LLC (UNC Investment Fund) and on a monthly
basis receives a unitization report from the Management Company
defining change in book and fair value, applicable realized gains
and losses and expenses. The Chapel Hill Investment Fund uses
a unit basis to determine each participant’s fair value and to
distribute the Fund's earnings according to the Fund's spending
policy. There are no involuntary participants in the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund. The University has not provided or obtained
any legally binding guarantees during the period to support the
value for the Chapel Hill Investment Fund. The audited financial
statements for the Chapel Hill Investment Fund may be obtained
from the University Controller's Office, Campus Box 1270, Chapel
Hill, NC 27599-1270, or by calling 919-962-1370.

The Chapel Hill Investment Fund consists of an approximate 55%
membership in the UNC Investment Fund categorized below.

UNC Investment Fund, LLC (UNC Investment Fund) — The UNC
Investment Fund is a nonprofit limited liability company exempt
from income tax pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) organized under the
laws of the State of North Carolina. It was established in December
2002 by the Chapel Hill Investment Fund and is classified as a
governmental external investment pool. The pool is utilized to
manage the investments for The University of North Carolina, its
constituent institutions, and affiliates of the constituent institutions.
This includes charitable, nonprofit foundations, associations, trusts,
endowments, and funds that are organized and operated primarily
to support these institutions. As previously noted, the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund, with an approximate 55% membership interest
as of June 30, 2020, is the predominant member of the UNC
Investment Fund.

The University's reporting entity portion of the Chapel Hill
Investment Fund and the Management Company's portion of the
UNC Investment Fund are characterized as the internal portion.
Other affiliated organizations in the Chapel Hill Investment Fund,
in addition to other members of the UNC Investment Fund not
included in the University's reporting entity, are characterized as
the external portion. The external portion of the UNC Investment
Fund is presented in the accompanying financial statements as
Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants. Membership interests
of the UNC Investment Fund are measured using the unit value
method. Under this method, each member's investment balance
is determined on a fair value basis.

The UNC Investment Fund is not registered with the SEC and is
not subject to any formal oversight other than that provided by
the Chapel Hill Investment Fund as the controlling member (See
Note 1A). Effective January 1, 2003, the Management Company
entered into an investment management services agreement with
the UNC Investment Fund and provides investment management
and administrative services.

The Bank of New York Mellon is the custodian for the UNC Invest-
ment Fund and provides the University with monthly statements
defining income and fair value information. The UNC Investment
Fund uses a unit basis to determine each member's fair value and
to distribute the fund's earnings. The University has not provided
or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the period to
support the value for the UNC Investment Fund investments. The
audited financial statements for the UNC Investment Fund may be
obtained from UNC Management Company, Inc., 1400 Environ Way,
Chapel Hill, NC 27517.
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The following table presents the UNC Investment Fund investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2020:

UNC Investment Fund

Investment Maturities (In Years)
Investment Type Amount Less than1 1to5 6to 10 More than 10

Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries $32,556,725 $13,750,350 $8,109,556 $10,696,819
U.S. Agencies 59,368,790 2,512,927 2,781,562 54,074,301
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 54,397,424 1,857,251 1,488,096 51,052,077
Asset-Backed Securities 32,223,298 5,716,665 5,002,379 21,504,254
Money Market Mutual Funds 295,511,844 $295,511,844

Domestic Corporate Bonds 3,459,997 1,015,445 684,812 1,026,930 732,810
Total Debt Securities $477,518,078 $296,527,289 $24,522,005 $18,408,523 $138,060,261

Other Securities:

Domestic Stocks $255,528,269
Foreign Stocks 10,203,778
Real Estate Investment Trust 37,288,155
Long/Short Hedge Funds 1,148,243,794
Diversifying Hedge Funds 611,461,329
Hedge Funds in Liquidation 9,423,236
Long Only Hedge Funds 1,432,434,399
Credit Based Commingled Funds 148,649,128
Private Equity Limited Partnerships 2,284,339,783
Real Assets Limited Partnerships 369,057,372
Total UNC Investment Fund Investments $6,784,147,321

At June 30, 2020, investments in the UNC Investment Fund had the following credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure:

BB, Ba and
Amount AAA, Aaa AA, Aa A BBB, Baa Below Unrated

U.S. Agencies $59,368,790 $49,486,512 $268,364 $1,186,726 $8,427,188
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 54,397,424 $2,701,500 $125,917 1,571,247 18,748,679 31,250,081
Asset-Backed Securities 32,223,298 2,092,229 19,888,490 10,242,579
Money Market Mutual Funds 295,511,844 295,511,844

Domestic Corporate Bonds 3,459,997 514,435 2,296,745 478,440 170,377
Totals $444,961,353 $298,213,344 $50,000,947 $2,422,662 $3,931,840 $40,302,335 $50,090,225

Rating Agency: Moody's/Standard & Poor's/Fitch (lowest rating reported above).



Foreign Currency Risk: The UNC Investment Fund holds foreign currency investments which are presented in U.S. dollars.
At June 30, 2020, the UNC Investment Fund'’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

Investm Currency Amount (U.S. Dollars)
Private Equity Limited Partnerships Euro $117,161,998
Real Assets Limited Partnerships Euro 2,178,703
Other Hedge Funds Euro 19,630,875
Total Euro 138,971,576
Private Equity Limited Partnerships British Pound Sterling 50,230,680
Real Assets Limited Partnerships British Pound Sterling 398,999
Total British Pound Sterling 50,629,679
Private Equity Limited Partnerships Canadian Dollar 5,741,546
Private Equity Limited Partnerships Australian Dollar 9,350
Total $195,352,151

Investment Derivatives: At June 30, 2020, the UNC Investment Fund is invested in foreign currency forward contracts with a fair
value of $604,133 and in U.S. dollar equity futures with a fair value of $5,686,001. Disclosures are provided for these investments in
Note 11 — Derivative Instruments.

Non-Pooled Investments — The following table presents investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2020,
for the University’s non-pooled investments.

Non-Pooled Investments

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Investment Type Amount Lessthan1 1to5 6 to 10 More than 10
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries $143,377 $30,927 $112,450

U.S. Agencies 105 105

Mortgage Pass Throughs 9,585 62 $9,523
Asset-Backed Securities 35,627 35,627
Debt Mutual Funds 6,419,813 589,821 5,829,992

Money Market Mutual Funds 504,466 $504,466

Foreign Government Bonds 30,100 30,100

Total Debt Securities $7,143,073 $504,466 $650,848  $5,942,609 $45,150

Other Securities:

Equity Mutual Funds $10,594,667
Domestic Stocks 12,742,004
Foreign Stocks 75,078
International Mutual Funds 7,621,120
Investments in Real Estate 9,993,274
Gifted Life Insurance 2,331,321
Real Estate Investment Trust 74,721
Private Equity Limited Partnerships 16,693,711
Total Non-Pooled Investments $67,268,969
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At June 30, 2020, the University's non-pooled investments had the following credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure:

BBB, BB, Ba and

Amount AAA, Aaa AA, Aa :EE] Below Unrated

U.S. Agencies $105 $105
Mortgage Pass Throughs 9,585 9,585
Asset-Backed Securities 35,627 $35,627

Debt Mutual Funds 6,419,813 $2,885,479 $20,029 $44,762 1,132,448 2,337,095
Money Market Mutual Funds 504,466 504,466

Foreign Government Bonds 30,100 30,100

Totals $6,999,696 $3,389,945 $20,029 $44,762 $1,198,175 $2,346,785

Rating Agency: Moody's/Standard & Poor's/Fitch (lowest rating reported above).

Foreign Currency Risk: At June 30, 2020, the University had nominal direct exposure to foreign currency risk in non-pooled investments.

Total Investments — The following table presents the total
investments at June 30, 2020:

Investment Type Amount

Debt Securities:

Total investments as reported in the University's
financial statements:

University Statement of Net Position:

U.S. Treasuries $130,100,702 Short-Term Investments $343,492,030
U.S. Agencies 135,555,346 Restricted Short-Term Investments 153,062,306
Mortgage Pass Throughs 2,003,279 Endowment Investments 2,415,818,783
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 103,290,347 Restricted Investments 3,829,378,385
Asset-Backed Securities 79,081,824 Other Investments 33,817,326
Debt Mutual Funds 248,611,546 Subtotal 6,775,568,830
Money Market Mutual Funds 335,623,582 Component Units:
Domestic Corporate Bonds 10,032,373 Investments of UNC Investment Fund Held for

Component Units that are Discretely Presented in
Foreign Corporate Bonds 9,580,289 Accompanying Financial Statements 697,257,375
Foreign Government Bonds 3,076,432 Total Investments $7,472,826,205
Total Debt Securities 1,056,955,720
Other Securities:
Equity Index/Mutual Funds 10,594,667
International Mutual Funds 7,621,120
Investment in Real Estate 9,993,274
Real Estate Investment Trusts 37,362,876

Long/Short Hedge Funds 1,148,243,794

Diversifying Hedge Funds 611,461,329
Hedge Funds In Liquidation 9,423,236
Long Only Hedge Funds 1,432,434,399

Credit Based Commingled Funds 197,303,186

Private Equity Limited Partnerships 2,301,033,494
Real Assets Limited Partnerships 369,057,372
Gifted Life Insurance 2,331,321
Domestic Stocks 268,300,273
Foreign Stocks 10,710,144
Total Other Securities 6,415,870,485
Total Investments $7,472,826,205



The University's reporting entity, including the three discretely
presented component units, comprises approximately 47% of the
UNC Investment Fund.

Component Unit — Investments of the University’s discretely
presented component unit, The UNC Health Foundation, are
subject to and restricted by G.S. 36E “Uniform Prudent Manage-
ment of Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA) and any requirements
placed on them by contract or donor agreements. Because the
UNC Health Foundation reports under the FASB reporting model,
disclosures of the various investment risks are not required. The
following is an analysis of investments by type:

Money Market Funds $9,552,405
Common Stock and ETF 2,486,761
Hatteras Venture Partners V, LP Alternatives 19,059,984
Mutual Funds — Equity Oriented 68,270,750
Mutual Funds — Credit Oriented 53,751,076
Government Securities and Corporate Fixed Income 31,143,817

Total Investments $184,264,793

University — To the extent available, the University’s investments
and derivatives are recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2020. GASB
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. This statement establishes
a hierarchy of valuation inputs based on the extent to which the
inputs are observable in the marketplace. Inputs are used in
applying the various valuation techniques and take into account
the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation
decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, interest
and yield curve data, and other factors specific to the financial
instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the
entity’s assumptions about how market participants would value
the financial instrument. Valuation techniques should maximize the
use of observable inputs to the extent available.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following describes the hierarchy
of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair
value on a recurring basis:

Level 1 Investments whose values are based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets that a government can access at the measure-
ment date.

Level 2 Investments with inputs — other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 — that are observable for an asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Investments classified as Level 3 have unobservable
inputs for an asset or liability and may require a degree
of professional judgment.

The following table summarizes the University’s investments,
including deposits in the Short-Term Investment Fund and
the discretely presented component units’ portion of the UNC
Investment Fund, within the fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2020:
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Investments by Fair Value Level Fair Value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasuries $130,100,702 $130,100,702

U.S. Agencies 135,555,346 $135,555,346

Mortgage Pass Throughs 2,003,279 2,003,279

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 103,290,347 103,290,347

Asset-backed Securities 79,081,824 79,081,824

Debt Mutual Funds 248,611,546 248,611,546

Money Market Mutual Funds 335,623,582 335,623,582

Domestic Corporate Bonds 10,032,373 10,032,373

Foreign Corporate Bonds 9,580,289 9,580,289

Foreign Government Bonds 3,076,432 3,076,432

Total Debt Securities 1,056,955,720 714,335,830 342,619,890

Other Securities:

International Mutual Funds 7,621,120 7,621,120

Equity Mutual Funds 10,594,667 10,594,667

Investments in Real Estate 9,993,274 $9,993,274
Domestic Stocks 268,300,273 259,491,124 8,809,149
Foreign Stocks 10,710,144 10,044,494 665,650

Gifted Life Insurance 2,331,321 2,331,321
Real Estate Investment Trust 37,362,876 37,362,876

Total Other Securities 346,913,675 325,114,281 665,650 21,133,744
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $1,403,869,395 $1,039,450,111 $343,285,540 $21,133,744

Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV)

Long/Short Hedge Funds

Fair Value

$1,148,243,794

Diversifying Hedge Funds 611,461,329
Hedge Funds in Liquidation 9,423,236
Long Only Hedge Funds 1,432,434,399
Credit Based Commingled Hedge Funds 197,303,186

Private Equity Limited Partnerships

2,301,033,494

Real Assets Limited Partnerships

369,057,372

Total Investments Measured at the NAV

$6,068,956,810

Short-Term Investment Fund $785,220,225

Total Investments Measured at Fair Value $8,258,046,430

Derivative Instruments Fair Value Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs
Hedging Derivative Instruments:

Pay-Fixed Interest Rate Swaps ($157,129,612) ($157,129,612)
Investment Derivative Instruments:

Pay-Fixed Interest Rate Swap (1,842,562) (1,842,562)
U.S.